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PREFACE

Responsibility for the Health and Safety Commission (HSC) and The Health and Safety Executive (HSE)
transferred to the Depaniment for Work and Pensions (DWP) on 24 July 2002,

Departmental responsibility for HSC/E previously lay with the Department for Transport, Local Government
and the Regions, and before that (until June 2001) with the Department of Environment, Transport and the

Regions.

The Health and Safety at Work eic Act 1974 esiablished the Health and Safety Commission and the Health and
safety Executive. H5C's primary functions in¢lude making arrangements o secure the health, safety and
welfare of people at work and protecting the public against risks 1o their health and safety from work activities,
The work includes proposing new laws and standards, conducting research and providing information and
advice, HSE advises and assists HSC and together with local authorities {LAs) has day-to-dav responsibility for
enforcing health and safety law, investigating accidents, licensing and approving standards in particularly

hazardous areas and commissioning research.

Clur mission is to protect people’s health and safety by ensuring risks in the changing workplace are properly

controlled.
Our goals are 1o continue to reduce injury rates: o continue 1o reduce work-related a1l health and consequent
days lost from work: to continue o improve the working environment; and 1o prevent major incidents with

catastrophic consequences occurring in high-hazard industries.

Our vision is to gain recognition of health and safety as a comerstone of a civilised society, and with that

achieve a record of workplace health and safety that leads the world.
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CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF THE HEALTH AND SAFETY
COMMISSION: 2002/03

Chair

Bill Callaghan. Appointed Chair of the Health and Safety Commission on | October 1999, He was previously
the Chief Economist and Head of the Economic and Social Affairs Depantment at the TUC. He has had a long
and distinguished career with the TUC, mainly in the economic field. He wrote the TUC's key strategic
document Partners for Progress which sets oul priorities in employment relations. He has considerable
experience of working with different groups in industry and public life and has served on the Boards of
Business and Community and the Basic Skills Agency. He served on the Low Pay Commission from 1997 -

2000 he was also a member of the Education Services Advisory Committee’s Research Priorities Board.
- -
Commissioners

George Brumwell. Appointment commenced on 1 April 1998, He is General Secretary of the Union of
Construction, Allied Trades and Technicians. He is a member of the Labour Party Mational Folicy Forum and
the TUCs Executive Commitiee and General Council. He is a long-time member of the Construction Industry
Training Board and a Board Member of the Construction Skills Certification Scheme for the construction
mdustry. He 1s an Executive Committee Member of the Evropean and International Federation of Building and

Wood Unions.

Margaret Burns. Appointment commenced on 1 April 1998, She is a part-time ttor of Public Law at the
University of Aberdeen. She has taught in the law faculties at Dundee and Glasgow Universities and at the
Open University. She was formerly the Legal Advisory Officer for. and is now a member of. the Scottish

Consumer Council, which nominated her for the Health and Safety Commission.

Abdul Chowdry JP. Appointment commenced on | April 1999, He gained more than 34 years experience as i
Health, Safety and Environment Advisor at Tumer and Mewall ple (manufacturing). where he worked until
August 1998, He is the Director of Blackbum/Darwen Racial Equality Council. He has been a magistrate since
1976. He was a Labour Councillor st Rechdale Metropolitan Borough Council from 1972 to 1998, where he
chaired o number of committees including Housing, Policy and Economic Development. He was also a

member of the Greater Manchester Police Authority from 1986 10 1998,

Judith Donovan CBE. Appointed 1 October 2000, A Yorkshire business woman who founded her own direct
marketing company in 1982, was Chairman of Bradford TEC from 1989-97, and the first female president of
Bradiord Chamber of Commerce from 1999-2001. She is currently a Trustee of Yorkshire Dales Millennium
Trust and a Director of the Northern Ballet Theatre, Chairman of Ripon Cathedral Development Campaign
Executive Committee and a member of the Programme Monitoring Committee for Objective 2 Funding for

Yorkshire and the Humber. She is also a Millennium Commissioner and Chairman of Postwateh for the Morth

of England.
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Clir Joyce Edmond-Smith. Appointment commenced on | April 1997, She has been a councillor for 16 years
and is a member of Brighton & Hove Council where she is Convenor of the Sustainability Commission. She
has a wide experience of environmental and health issues and was a member of the Association of District
Councils for cight years, where she chaired the Environment & Health Commiuee. She has served on the
Brighton & Hove Community Health Council and has been a member of the national Local Agenda 21 Steering

group for seven years. She taught in Further Education for 20 vears.

Judith Hackitt. Appointment commenced on 1 April 2002, She trained as a Chemical Engincer at Imperial
College, London. She has been Director of Business and Responsible Care at the Chemical Industries
Association (CIA) since 1998 and was appointed Director General of the CIA from | April 2002, Judith was
previously emploved as Group Risk Manager at Elementis PLC with worldwide responsibility for health and
safety insurance and litigation. She also served for three years as a non-executive Director of Oxfordshire

Health Authority. She holds no other Ministerial appointments nor is engaged in any political activity.

John Longworth. Appointment commenced on 1 April 2002, He is Group Trading Law and Technical Direcior
of Tesco PLC, He is currently accountable for Corporate Policy on Regulatory, Consumer and Scientific Affairs
and for product quality and operating standards, including environment, safety and operational risk
mianagement. John has been in commerce and industry for almost twenty years and for the whole of this period
he has been involved with UK and Evropean Government. He is currently a member of several British Retail
Consortium Policy Committees, Chairs the Institute of Grocery Distnibution Director’s Technical Forum and
sits on the Governments”™ Advisory Committee on Packaging Waste and Recyeling. He is not engaged in any

political activity.

Maureen Rooney CBE. Commissioner Maurcen Rooney died on 1 May 2003 after a long illness. Maurcen
was appointed 1o the Health and Safety Commission in October 2000 and brought 1o the Commission the
qualities which made her an outstanding Trade Unionist. She had a deep rooted concern for the health, safety
and working conditions of working people combined with a practical. no nonsense approach on how to
improve health and safety on the shop floor. While serving on the Commission she championed the work of
HSE dealing with the oil and nuclear industries. Her enthusiasm and commitment impressed HSE stalf,

employers, Trade Union representatives and all who came into contact with her.

Owen Tudor, Appointiment commenced on 17 November 1998, He is a Senior Policy Officer at the TUC
responsible for prevention, rehabilitation and compensation. He has been a member of the HSC Advisory
Committee on Toxic Substances, the Civil Justice Council and the Board of the Roval National Institute for
Deaf People. He is currently a member of the Industrial Injuries Advisory Council and the Management Board
of the European Agency for Safety and Health. He writes regularly in the health and safety media and publishes

the TUCs online health and safety bulletin, Risks. He is married and has a young son.
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THE WORK OF THE COMMISSION

The Commission’s responsibilities and powers are defined by the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act. 1974 (the
HSW Act) and its subordinate instruments. On 24 July responsibility for health and safety transferred to the
Department for Work and Pensions and from that date the Commission reports to the Secretary of State for Work

and Pensions, and to other Secretaries of State for the administration of the HSW Act throughout Great Britain,
Commission’s duties
The Commuission’s statutory duties include:

@ encouraging other people 1o secure safe and healthy working conditions;

@ arranging for research and training to be carried out and encouraging others to undentake research and training;
@ arranging for an advisory and information service for stakeholders:

& submutting proposals for regulations (o Ministers: and

& paving to the Executive sums appropriate for it to perform its functions.
- ] -
Commission’s powers of action

The Commuission’s powers of action are wide, They imclude anything necessary 1o help them advance these
statutery duties, The primary role of the Commission is o give strategic direction 1o the work of HSE. It also has

powers L

& approve and issue Codes of Practice (" Approved Codes of Practice” - ACOPs) with the consent of the Secretary

of State, subject o consultation with Government Departments and other organisations;

® make agreements with any Government Department or person to perform HSC or HSE functions on HSC/E's
behalf;

® make agreements with any Minister, Government Depariment, or public authority for HSC 10 perform

funciions on thewr behall:
® give mandatory guidance 1o local authorities (LAs) on enforcement;

® dircct HSE or authorise any other person to investigate and report on aceidents or other matters, and subject 1o

regulations made by the relevant Minister, directing inquiries 1o be held.

Commission Code of Practice

e Commission has adopted a Code of Practice, which the Chair and Commissioners follow, This conforms 1o
Cabinet Office guidance. It sets out the responsibilities of the Chair and the corporate and individual responsibilities
of Commissioners,

viii






WORK DURING 2002/03

Setting the strategic direction

The Commission continued the series of strategic reviews begun in 2001. It examined key instruments of
policy available — economic levers (insurance, fiscal incentives, etc). law enforcement ~ in sessions to which
external contributors were invited to stimulate and join in the discussion. The Commission was grateful for
informative and interesting presentations from a range of UK and overseas speakers from the academic,

regulatory, legal, Government and business spheres.

The Commission also agreed a new vision and high-level aims as a framework for their next Strategy. These
will provide the key strategic directions to underpin the development of the new plan for 2004 and bevond.
Consultation has begun inside and outside the organisation on five major themes: responding 1o a changing
economy in a changing world; health issues, public protection and security: the role of local authorities; and
managing the business. Other related discussions during the year have covered chemicals and pesticides,
permissioning regimes. insurance. and economic incentives for improving health and safety. The findings from

all of this will inform decisions about the long-term sirategic direction of HSC/E.
Changing ways of working

The Commission pressed on with its change programme including a shift during the year from fortnightly 1o
monthly business meetings, with additional meetings to deal with strategic issues.

Meanwhile Commissioners developed their new roles as ambassadors, champions or advisers across a wide
range of activity. In a non-executive capacity they made valuable contributions to HSC’s Priority Programmes.

Commissioners were increasingly involved in other important aspects of the work. For example, Judith

Donovan advised HSE officials on a new Small Firms Allowance Scheme, and on a new small firms function
for HSE. She also designed and oversaw work to investigate the right messages to motivate smaller companies
to improve health and safety. Judith Hackiu joined HSE's Audit Committee to provide external scrutiny,

Joyce Edmond-Smith continued to act as key link with local authorities. Owen Tudor took an interest in worker
safety adviser sub-committee and John Longworth provided a link to the British Retail Consortium and
stimulated HSE’s thinking on “so far as is reasonably practicable” and due diligence as a defence.
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Influencing stakeholders

A key part of the Commissioner’s role is to encourage those best placed to improve health and safery 1o take
the necessary action, and the Commission is developing a programme of visits to major stakeholders” events, as
well as creating new avenues to address those groups which cannot easily be reached through existing
organisations. Commissioners attended numerous events, and addressed many different andiences during the

year — too many to list here, but a few examples show the range of their engagements:

Bill Callaghan, HSC Chair, addressed the XVIth World Congress on Safety and Health held in Vienna. He also
gave a Centenary Lecture to the Institution of Electrical Engineers in October 2002 as well as addressing many

other organisations throughout the year.

George Brumwell atended the launch of a new discussion document on improving health and safety in

construction and addressed the ASLEF conference in October 2002,

Margaret Burns acts as the Chair of the Commission’s Railway Industry Advisory Committee and as such
undertook an active role in the ERTMS public consultation, as well as attending the 1058H conference in
Scotland.

Abdul Chowdry worked with the police force., and as champion of the Stress Programme spoke at the

Engineering Employvers Federation stress conference.

Joyee Edmond-Smith addressed the Royal Environmental Health Institute for Scotland. met with the Local

Government Association, and attended Emplovers Forum meetings as a member.

Judith Donovan atiended the Bradford Health and Safety Seminar in October and launched the Ready Reckoner

amongsi other CNgagements.

Judith Hackitt and John Longworth attended the Engineering Construction Indusiry Association meeting in
December.

John Longworth and Owen Tudor took part in HSE's Revitalising Health and Safety Conference in May and

also the Police Federation Conference in March 2003,

Finally, Maureen Rooney took a close interest in major hazards work. Both the Commission and HSE greeted

the news of her death in May 2003 with great sadness.
Commission’s Advisory Committees

The Commission's Advisory Committees continue to provide specialist knowledge and advice to the
Commission. However, as the world of work changes so should the Commission’s view of the world. A review
of ‘subject’ and *Industry” Advisory Committees led 1o new administration arrangements for most of the
Commission’s commiliees. Indusiry Advisory Committees underwent review against criteria proposed and
agreed by Commissioners and the Commission delegated to the Executive administrative matters such as
appointment and reconstitution arrangements. Commissioner Margaret Burmns took on a new role as Chairman
of the Railways Industry Advisory Committee. At the invitation of the Commission Chair, the Subject Advisory

Committees produced horizon scans for the Commission to consider as background to the next Strategy.
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MEMBERS OF THE HEALTH AND SAFETY
EXECUTIVE

Director General Timaothy Walker CI

Director General since 1 October 2000. Previously an academic scientist, Timothy Walker has taught physics
and chemistry at various universities. He worked on trade with the Middle East. telecommunications
liberalisation and grants to industry at the Department of Trade and Industry and was Principal Private
Secretary to successive Secretaries of State for Trade and Industry. He has also held responsibility for civil
nuclear matters. Other posts held have been UK Governor of IAEA, Chairman of the EBRD Nuclear Safety
Account. Home Office Director General for immigration and nationality and Deputy Chairman of HM Customs

and Excise,
Deputy Director General {Operations)  Justin MeCracken

Justin McCracken took up post as HSE's Deputy Director General (Operations) on 1 April 2002. He is
responsible for all of HSE's operational divisions, ie field operations. nuclear and offshore safety, chemical
hazardous installations, railways, mines, construction, agriculture and health services. Justin is based in HSE's

Liverpool headguarters,

A physics graduate, he joined ICI in 1976 as a research scientist and moved from there into process
development and plant management. His subsequent posts in 1CT wook him into marketing and business

management in the UK and overseas, culminating in worldwide responsibility for ICIs catalyst business.

In 1995, he jomed the Environment Agency as NW Regional Director. There, he was responsible for all the
activities of the Agency in the North West, including regulation of process, water and waste industries, river

habitats and fisheries improvement, flood defences and promotion of sustainable development.
He is married with three children.
Deputy Director General { Policy) Kate Timms CH

Kate Timms wok up post as HSE's Deputy Director General (Policy) in June 2001. She has direct oversight of
the Health Policy and Safety Policy Directorates, Nuclear Safety Policy and the Railways Directorate.

Kate was educated at St Hilda's College, Oxford where she studied politics, philosophy and economics. She
was Director General for Agriculture and the Food Industry in the Ministry of Agriculture (MAFF) - now
DEFRA (Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs) since 1996, Her responsibilities included all
aspects of European Union (EU) and international agricultural policy negotiations as well as sponsorship of the
domestic food and agriculture industries.

Prior to that Kate worked for five years in Brussels as Head of Agriculture Section in the UK Permanent
Representation to the EU, returning to MAFF to spend a vear in the post of Principal Finance Officer.

Kate also worked in the British Embassy in Paris in the late 1980s with responsibility for agriculture and
economic affairs, and was also seconded to the Cabinet Office to work on EU policy issues,
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CHAIR’S FOREWORD

This Report describes what we have achieved against our Business Plan 2002 - 2003, It reports on the work we
said we would carry out as our contribution towards achieving the national targets for health and safety set out
in the Revitalising Health and Safety Strategy Statement. These targets are shared with Government as part of

our Public Service Agreement.

The fall in the number of workplace fatal accidents for 2002/03, published in July. is encouraging. But there is
no room for complacency, especially on ill health issues, and we will need to await publication later in the year
of more extensive statistics including injuries and work-related ill health before we can make a judgment about

overall progress,

Getting our message across

The wide range of activities undertaken by HSC/E is clear from this Report. But not enough people really
understand our approach and how we regulate workplaces. In the coming vear, the Commission wants to

promote this understanding and | want to begin that process with three clear messages:

First, people have a right to have their health and safery protected.
A risk-free society is not something we could, or would wish to, aim for. But in a civilised society, people in
offices, shops and factories, using the railways. and pursuing leisure activities have a right to be protected from

excessive, unnecessary and preventable risk.

Second, HSC and HSE work together to protect people from work-related health and safety risks. The

Commission works with the Executive to provide guardianship of workplace health and safety.

Third. HEC and HSE can succeed only with the support of emplovers, emplovees and the public. With 3.7
million enterprises and a workforce of more than 28 million in Great Britain, occupational health and safety
cannot be the business of the HSC/E alone, We all have a responsibility to create a health and safety record that
leads the world, and not only because it is a legal duty. Good health and safety management also makes good

business sense. Employees, trade unions and safety representatives have an important role in this process,
A new strategy for 2004 and beyond

These messages reinforce our new strategy. The world of work does not stand still. Consequently, workplace
hazards and risks are ever changing. The nation’s health and safety strategy must aim to keep pace with such
changes. And so since early 2003, in consultation with our stakeholders, we have been developing a new
strategy to take the health and safety system to 2010 and beyond. At the time of writing we have done our
iitial thinking and are consulting on proposals that will continue 1o position health and safety as a cornerstone
of a civilized society. Big questions remain about the future of the health and safety system and tough decisions

have to be made about future resource allocation.
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Potters Bar

In May last year. seven people were Killed and over 70 injured when a commuter train derailed at Potters Bar,
HSC directed HSE, under the auspices of an Investigation Board, to carry out an investigation into the events
surrounding the acgident. The Board published its final progress report in May this year which included
observations and recommendations for improving rail safety. | would like 1o thank all those involved for the

thoroughness of the reports and expect the lessons leamt from this tragedy will result in a safer railway system.
Working with the Department for Work and Pensions

In July 2002, responsibility for HSC and HSE transferred to the Department for Work and Pensions, In the
months since, the Department has taken a very close mterest in our work, particularly our contribution 1o
delivery of the national health and safety targets. This interest is welcome. | have already referred (o the merits
of working in pantnership. Together. we are focussing on refining our reporting systems and exploring other

means of achieving our delivery targets.
Commissioner Maureen Rooney

Finally, Commissioner Maureen Eooney passed away on 1 May 2003 after a long illness. Maureen brought 1o
the Commission the qualities which made her an outstanding trade unionist: a deep rooted concern for the
health, safety and the working conditions of working people combined with a practical. no nonsense approach
on how to improve health and safety on the shop floor. While serving on the Commission she championed the
work of HSE dealing with the oil and nuclear industries. Maureen, and all she brought to our organisation, will

be sadly missed.
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DIRECTOR GENERAL'S FOREWORD

Delivery

I am pleased once again to report successes with delivery of our published plans in what again has been a busy
and challenging year. While a small number of planned activities had to be posiponed to make way for new
priority work, and there was some slippage on more long-term or more complicated pieces of work, it was a

very good performance in the four main blocks of work.

Priority Programmes: Most planned activities have been delivered and almost all selected milestones delivered.

All Programmes have carried out activities over and above published plans with compliance activity

particularly successful.

It is never easy to select activities for the spotlight but I am pleased that detailed analysis of HSE statistics and
records helped target activity in falls from heighr: strategics have been crystallised in workplace transport;
work-related stress management standards have been developed and are being piloted; a full programme of
well-attended agricultural safety awareness days was held; the newly established Ceovstruction Division made
major advances in operational technigues and achievements through compliance work and cooperation with
intermediaries; siakeholder engagement in the musciloskeleral disorders programme 15 bearing fruit; the
Mational Health Services of England. Wales and Scotland are commined to RHS targets or better, and

roadshows carmed oot in the Siips and frips Prograomme galvanised delegates into action.

Major Hozards: During the year, HSE has been working to develop a target for major hazards. HSE is
determined, in co-operation with the major hazards industries, to improve control of the risks: the targets will
help everyone 1o focus on what necds o be achieved. We shall be “shadow running” the target during 2003404

0 that the approach can be tested and 1 will report more on this next year.

Mandarory Activiries: European projects have largely proceeded to plan, with HSE also contributing where
other Departments have the lead. H5E plaved an important part in the transition of Railirack to Network Rail
and the LUL PPP proposals. Significant contributions have been made to the development of the Rail Accident
Investigation Branch and the Rail Safety and Standards Board. Good progress has been made to implement the

Science and Innovation Strategy and the record on provision of information and advice is excellent.

1A major and well-anended stakeholder
conference was held in May 2002 1o encourage top companies to focus on health and safety improvements. The
Securing Health Together Programme Action Groups have completed their initial work and produced

conclusions. A workshop in November will look at next steps.
wring Compliance: HSE's new Inspection Report Form was introduced within an exceptionally short

timescale. The data collected using the new form will be of great use in evaluating the outcomes of inspection

contacts and measuring the change in standards across industry on the HSC priofty lopics.
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Operational Quiputs and Performance Measures: This was another good year. The final outtumn for numbers of
regulatory contacts is 109 above profile. We investigated virtually all of the incidents that met our published
criteria, although the changing pattern of incidents meant this amounted to 7.9% of the total rather than the
predicted 8.2%. We have exceeded our business improvement targets and have reduced the proportion of staff
payroll costs devoled to central services 1o 7% against a target of 8%. However, the final number of safety
cases processed is below the expected profile because it has been necessary to return many cases to duty

holders for further action. These will be carried over into 2003/04.

Managing the organisation: Good progress has been made against many of the 8B0-odd actions in the second
vear of a very detailed Management Plan. We have raised the profile of staff health & safety and agreed a stress
strategy and an action plan. HSC/E published its Race Equality Scheme setting ot challenging targets for the
organisation with 21 specific actions 1o be completed by May 2003. Progress against each for yvear one is

largely complete.
Other significant work

HSE's Change Programme: The Chair has referred to the development of a new health and safety strategy
designed to keep pace with a changing world, The development of our Vision, Mission, Aims and Values has
played a large part in this. HSE has been looking at how we can best meet the challenges from the new
programmes. We must ensure that we are well equipped and effective as an orgamsation to deliver these.
During 2002/03, progress has been significant. We have established a new Policy Group to enable integration

of health and salety policy and are continuing to align resource with the strategic policies,
{nvestors in Peopfe: Finally, 1 am very pleased to repont that HSE achieved Corporate Investors in People

recognition: external recognition that we have clarity in our business objectives and that the fraining and

development of people in HSE is aligned to those business objectives,
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Health and Safety Commission
Annual Report 2002/03







SUMMARY

.1 This publication reponts on the work of HSC/E during 2002/03 and is based on the plans contained in
the HSC Business Plan 2002 - 2003 (which in um is based on the Strategic Plan 2001 — 2004 (see
http://www.hse.gov.uk/aboutus/plans/index.htm published in September 2001 ). It also provides information
about how HSE is managed, health and safety in HSE. progress with HSEs Management Plan 20010 = 2004,

output and performance measures and legislative timetables,

1.2 Paragraphs 1.4 1o 1.24 below describe:

& the basis for our current work;

L] the programme blocks: and

& a summary of progress,

1.3 The HSC Business Plan 2002 — 2003 also sets out a wide range of outcomes and targets. We will be

reporting separately on these before the end of the year after HSC's Health and Safety Statistics for 2002/03
have been published.

National Government targets for health and safety

1.4 In June 2000, the Government set national targets for all stakeholders in the health and safety system

published in the Revitalising Health and Safety (RHS). Strategy Statement. The targets are to:

[ ] reduce the number of working days lost per 100 000 workers from work-related injury and ill healih
by 305 by 2010;

e reduce the incidence rate of fatal and major injury incidents by 10% by 2000;

e reduce the incidence rate of cases of work-related ill health by 20% by 2010; and

L] achieve half the improvements under each target by 2004,

[ I Achieving half the improvements by 2004 15 one of the targets in the Department for Work and

Pension’s Public Service Agreement (PSA) (orizinally in the PSA for our previous sponsoring Department - the
Department of the Environment. Transport and the Regions) which was published following the Government s
Spending Review 2000, In addition to the national targets, the Government and the Commission agreed a broad

ten-point strategy for the next ten years and 44 specific Action Points,
Securing Health Together

1.6 In the same year. the Commission, Government and other stakeholders Launched a long-term strategy
1o improve occupational health, Securing Health Together. This forms a central plank of the Revitalising Health
and Safety Strategy Statement. It commits all concemed to achieve both the health-related targets set out in

RHS and the following additional targets by 2010




5 a 200 reduction in ill healih to members of the public caused by work activily,

™ everyone currently in employment but off work due to ill health or disability is, where necessary and

appropriate, made aware of opportunities for rehabilitation back into work as soon as possible; and

] evervone currently not in employment due to ill health or disability is, where necessary and

appropriate, made aware of and offered opportunities to prepare for and find work.
HSC plans

1.7 The Strategic Plan and the Business Plan 2002 — 2003 focus HSC activity on achieving the national

targets for health and safety.

1.8 HSC's contribution is based around four programme-based blocks:

L] taking action in priority areas (“Priority Programmes’);

[ ] ensuring an effective regulatory regime in the major hazards sectors (Work in major hazard industries)
[ ] securing compliance with the law (*Securing Compliance”); and

[ ] meeting the mandate given by Government (*Mandatory Activities’).

Delivery 2002 - 2003

General

1.9 Muost plans have been delivered or well progressed: regulatory outputs exceeded profile: and HSE
achieved its best Business Improvement Performance. Evropean projects are largely progressing 1o plan, with
HSE inpuiting as necessary where other Departments have the lead. A number of domestic legislative projects
slipped. but for sound reasons; and it has been necessary again in 2002/03 to return many safety cases to duty

holders for further action - hence the final output performance measure is well below profile.

Revitalising Health and Safety

1.10  Annual health and safety statistics for 2000/02 showed little change, and as yet have not reflected the
hoped for improvements. The baselines from the latest self-reported work-related ill health survey established
for national working days lost and work-related ill health suggest the scale of the problem is greater than
previously estimated. 1t has shown where we need o concentrate our efforis. Statistics for 2002003 will be

available in the autumn.

LIT A major stakeholder conference was held in May 2002 to encourage top employvers 1o focus on health
and safety improvements, celebrate what had been achieved and commit to targets. Trade Unions and
employers helped organise the conference and made a substantial contribution to the open sessions.
Professional organisations and Trade Unions continue actively to support major initiatives in many industries,

During the year HSC/E senior staff visited the top 350 companies to raise the profile of health and safety and

4



the pilot development of “national account managers® for 15 top organisations was launched. The Government
and HSC's challenge to companies to publicly report on health and safety has gone well. For example. the
recent research report at http://www.hse.gov.uk/research/rehtm/rr135.htm indicates the number of FTSE 100
companies publicly reporting has risen to 91%, compared with 56% in the baseline report, (See page 64 for the

detail of activities.)

I.12  RHS has a homepage on the HSE website, which can be found at http://www.hse.gov.uk/revitalising
Securing Health Together

.13 Secunng Health Together is a ten-vear strategy. Further work has been undertaken that will deliver results
later in the strategy. Examples included a review of the Partnership Board; completion of initial work by the five
Programme Action Groups (reports will be published in 2003/4), creating a database of 60 good practice projects
and rebuilding the website: hitp://www.ohstrategy.net/, identifying new information sources for improved target
monitoring and building a better evidence base for action, and surveying current use of occupational healih
support in GB. Achievement of the Securing Health Together targets is about pannership, working 1o achieve
common goals. Examples that came to fruition during 2002003 included HSE funding of a pilot telephone
occupational health and safety helpline in Lanarkshire, now upgraded 1o a national service for Scotland with
Scottish Executive funding (Tel: 0800 019 2211, hitp:/www.hebs.com/safeandhealthyworking ), and HSE
support for the TUC development of training materials (http:/swww.hazards.org/divresearch/index.htm) for
safety representatives on how to identify and tackle health hazards in the workplace with groups of workers, (See

page 66)

Priority Programmes

1.14  The majority of planned activities have been delivered or well progressed together with almost all
selected milestones achieved. All programmes have carried out activities over and above published plans.
Particularly successful has been compliance activity where output in almost all cases exceeded plans.

(See page &)

Work in major hazard industries

1.15  Much of HSE’s work is about the management of health and safety in high hazard industries and the
control of major hazard events. Sectors covered are those where the control of major hazards is critical, for
example, railways, gas convevance and onshore major hazard pipelines, chemical installations covered by the
Control of Major Accident Hazards Regulations (COMAH), explosives and the mining, offshore and nuclear

industrics. (See page 37.)

During 2002/03 HSE conducted a major consultation on our overall approach o ‘permissioning regimes’, ie
those where the safety regulator issues a licence or accepts a safety case. This led to the adoption and
publication by HSC of an important policy statement *Our approach to permissioning regimes’ in March 2003,
This statement explains the philosophy adopted by HSC/E in regulating health and safety in hazardous
industries and provides a framework of 10 core principles. Work has also been undertaken to develop largels
for major hazards. HSE is determined, in co-operation with the major hazards industries, to make further
improvements in the control of risk and the targets will help everyone to focus on what needs to be achieved.

This new target will shadow run for a vear so that the approach can be tested.

5



Securing compliance

116 Securing compliance underpins and complements all our other work, H5E and local authorities are
required under the HSW Act to make adequate amangements 1o enforce health and safety law. This report
details the range of enforcement activities across a broad range of hazards in a number of sectors as well as the

latest position with inspecting high-risk premises. (See page 33)

Mandatory activities
.17 As well as being required 10 enforce health and safety law, HSC/E have been tasked by Government 1o

carry out a number of functions under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974,

modernise and simplify the regulatory framework;
provide appropriate information and advice:

promote risk assessment and technical knowledge; and

operale statulory s hemes.

This report provides information on all these functions, and progress against plans can be found beginning on

page 64

Managing the organisation
I.I8  This section includes information on a wide range of management and business issues, eg staffing,
prompt payment of bills, charging, green housekeeping. (See page 91.) Of particular note is that HSE achieved

corporate liP stats: notified in May 2003.

Health and Safety in HSE

1.19  HSE has significantly raised the profile of staff health & safety, agreed a stress strategy and developed
an action plan and completed a benchmarking exercise with the Highways Agency which was of benefit to both

organisations in demonstrating areas for improvement. (See page 103)

The Management Plan

1.200  This is the second vear of a very detailed Plan, Good progress has been made on many of the
numerous actions. (See page 105) Delivery of the priorities set out in this Plan has continued against the
background of a wider programme of change in HSE designed 1o make HSE a more modern, responsive and
flexible organisation which will deliver improved health and safety. The overall emphasis within the Change
Programme is on behavioural change and new ways of working, New organisational structures have been put in
place 10 facilitae those ways of working and to respond 1o the challenges set by the Strategic Plan, including
implementation of the priorities in the Management Plan. The Change Programme was established early in
2002/03, based on the outcome of a scoping project conducted towards the end of 2001/02. During 2002/03, in
structural terms, new Directorates and Divisions were set up: the Strategy and Intelligence Division, the Policy
Group and the Corporate Science and Analytical Support Directorate. In addition, sector work has been
reviewed with changes aimed at a coverage better reflecting the current mix of the economy; science and
technology support has been moved into Operational Directorates and the Policy Group so as to strengthen the
links between operations and policy. *Ways of working” workshops have been piloted and will be rolled out for
all stafl across HSE in 2003/04. Most importantly in terms of our role, there is now a clear statement of our




Vision, Mission, Aims and Values and this will inform work on the new Strategy which is currentlv beine

developed.

Operational Outputs and Performance Measures (OPMs)

I.21  The final outturn for numbers of regulatory contacts is 10% above profile: for % of incidents
investigated: 7.9% (0.3 percentage points below the end year target of 8.2%): and the outturn for the % of
complaints investigated is 85% (2 % below the end year target). The final number of safely cases processed is

below the profile.

1.22 A mixed picture emerges from remaining OPMs, Some have been well achieved, Outturn on % staff
payroll costs devoted to central services is 7% against a target of 8%. The Business Improvement Plan shows
savings valued at £12 655 581 for the year achieved through a combination of cash savings and quantifiable
added benefits, This is equivalenr to 0.0 % of fotal adminisiraiive cosis in resource terms fexcludine HSL) i

£207 224 606,71 - exceeding onr target of 3% for year-on-year savings. (See page 127)

- -
Legislative annex
.23 Annex 3 contains full details of European and domestic legislative projects planned for the reporting
year and an up to date report on the position at the end of the year.

(See page 128)
Further information

1.24 In addition 1o publishing this report as a printed document, vou can also find it on the HSE website, The
wichsile addresses for main publications and information are given throughout this repon. Further, mone
comprehensive information on publications and reports referred to can be found on the HSE books website
(http:iwww.hsebooks.co.uk/homepage.html). The website also contains up-to-date information and advice on
health and safely issues including the latest statistical information (hittp:/'www.hse_gov.uk/statistics/index.htm).
Advice can also be sought via HSE's Infoline: telephone 08701 545500; e-mail address
hitp:/'www.hse.gov.uk/contact/index.htm Staff here can help answer general enguiries and tell you about our

publications.



PRIORITY PROGRAMMES
Introduction

1.25  Eight Priority Programmes have been selected covering hazards or sectors where major improvements

are necessary if the targets are to be met. We will focus on five hazard areas and three sectors:

('] falls from height;

[ ] workplace transpori;

o musculoskeletal disorders;

[ ] work-related stress;

L] agriculture;

[ ] construction ;

L ] health services: and

(] slips and trips { broadened beyond former LA remit to tackle in addition the 75% of slips and trips

myajor injuries occurring within HSE-enforced premises/activities).

1.26  The mix of tools used in the plans (compliance, continuous improvement, knowledge, skills and
competencies. and support and advice) has been designed to suit the needs of each programme, based on the
particular circumstances in each sector or hazard. In some hazards, knowledge and understanding is better
developed so different approaches can be adopted which focus, for example. on securing compliance with the

law. However, a common strand throughout is the involvement of stakeholders to help deliver the targets.

.27 These hazards and sectors are those where action is needed now. If such action is successful we will
bring forward new priorities later. Health issues often require longer to identify the scope of problems and the
best ways of tackling them before specific action can be taken. There is inevitably an overlap between work
that is carried on in sectors and work o address specific hazards. Details of how each programme has

developed over 2002403 follows.
Table 1 Falls from height

This Priority Programme has strong links to other Priority Programmes on agriculture, construction and
workplace transporl. Key messages for the programme are to encourage duty holders to: design out the need for
work at height if possible; plan and use safe systems for all work at height: to select, use and maintain suitable
equipment; to ensure that all those involved in work at heights are competent; and to ensure that when work at

height is necessary it is properly managed and supervised,









Table 2 Workplace transport

The programme has strong links to other Priority Programmes, especially on agriculture and construction
‘Stakeholder involvement is vital for the success of this Priority Programme. Priorities for this year have been 1o
‘engage stakeholders in the development of a sirategy to improve safety in workplace transport and to improve
the management of 'i'fnl.'k]g.l_ﬂ_m: transport activities. With the help of stakeholders we have identified three areas
for action: concentrating on the site, driver training and competence and vehicle design. Strategies for reducing
accidents in all three areas have been developed and work to implement them is being taken forward in 2003/04.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Table 3 Musculoskeletal disorders

Musculoskeletal disorders (MSDs) account for over one third of all working days lost due 1o work related illness.
But they are well understood and we know how to manage them. The programme uses this know-how for
practical interventions in the framework of the accupational health strategy Securing Health Together. It promotes
a comprehensive approach involving all individuals and organisations in the workplace, A significant element is
aimed at securing compliance with relevant legislation, which requires the application of ergonomic ideas to
provide effective and efficient solutions.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03













Table 4 Work-related stress

This Priority Programme initially focuses on working with pariners to develop clear, agreed standards of good
management practice for a range of stressors and to better equip HSE inspectors and local authority officers to
handle work related stress during routine work. HSE is also supporting publicity and guidance 1o educate
employers and employee representatives especially on risk assessment. This programme has particular links to
the Health Services Priority Programme.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Table 5 Construction

This programme is taking forward actions over a broad front to engage with all stakeholders including clients,
contractors, designers, suppliers and workers, Key elements include improving knowledge on health and safety
performance; promoting the business case for successful health and safety risk management: developing the
r-:gti]alury. framework and supporting guidance, developing effective compliance strategies and ensuring
vigorous enforcement to address shortcomings in duty holders.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03

Tl L e
EVENLS 1O esi

e e e
ThNeir e













Table 6 Agriculture

The main thrust of activity in this programme is 1o improve knowledge of health and safety and thereby
'r:mnpha'r:e with health and safety law. Working with others, HSE's plans for 2002/03 were 1o explore methods
of msunng i heﬂe'i’uanwd and educated management and workforce who embrace safer practices and who have
a better }.nnwledge of the risks and the precautions that must be taken to improve health and safety. Improving
legislation was part of this work as was encouraging partnership through mechanisms such as the Agriculiural
Industry Advisory Commitiee (AIAC), which advises HSC on health and safety in agriculture and working with
DEFRA as part of their restructuring approach to the industry,

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03



















Table 7 Health Services

Over the lifetime of this plan, in addition o dealing directly with NHS trusts, HSE will work with the health
mim.ii]"En.glami.' Scotland and Wales through their existing and emerging targets and programmes 1o make
a substantial iﬁmn-_i.l:mim 1o reducing health and safety failures. HSC will, through HSAC and HSE, seek 10
ensure ﬂi.ht.lhﬁ'iriﬂ;péndléht sector also develops suitable targets to secure the improvements required by RHS.
iﬁay:m:fm'.MIbpmm will include, musculoskeletal disorders, stress. violence and slips and trips.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03










Table 8 Slips and trips

Slips and trips are the most common cause of major injuries at work, and yet they are often perceived as
insignificant and unavoidable. This Priority Programme aims to change attitudes to these accidents and offer
practical solutions 1o reduce them via a programme that includes: convincing the right people that slips and
trips are serious, that effective action can be taken and to take action; encouraging local authority and HSE
staff, employers. employees, intermediaries and other interested parties: influencing those responsible for the
design and maintenance of new or refurbished workplaces: underpinning research and standards development.
The Slips and Trips Programme has links with the Health Services and Construction Priority Programmes.
Membership of the Slips and Trips Programme Board includes representatives from employers, unions and
local authorities.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03
















MAJOR HAZARD INDUSTRIES
Introduction

1.28  Much of HSE's work is about the management of health and safety in high hazard industries and the
control of major hazard events - the prevention of major incidents where the health and safety of many people,

whether workers or members of the public, is affected.

1.29  Progress with published plans during 20022003 follow. Sectors covered are those where the control of
major hazards is critical, for example, railways, gas conveyance and onshore major hazard pipelines, chemical
mstallations covered by the Control of Major Accident Hazards Regulations (COMAH). explosives and the
mining, offshore and nuclear industries. In March 2003, following public consultation, HSC published its over-

arching policy statement on regulating high hazard industries = *Our approach to permissioning regimes’
Table 9 Railways

1,30 The operating environment for the railways in 2002003 was shaped by the need for the railway industry
1o make the safety improvemenis recommended in the Southall Inguiry, the Jomt Inguiry o Tram Protection
Systems, and Lord Cullen’s two reponts on the Ladbroke Grove collision; and to take forward the Commission’s
own regulatory agenda arising from the recommendations made in these reports. These actions are set in the
wider context of the HSC Rail Strategy which was published in 2002, Safety on the railways continued o attract
considerable public interest including the attention that was focussed on the establishment of Network Rail as
the successor to Railtrack and concerns about the London Underground Limited Public Private Parnership
proposals. There was strong political and economic focus on improving the performance of the rail network.
Although these were primarily matters for the Government, the Office of the Rail Regulator (ORE) and the
Strategic Rail Authority (SRA), HSE worked with other regulators to ensure that account is taken o health and

safely implications and possible benefits,

1.3] European influences were also important during 2002/03 and HSE worked with the Department for
transport (DFT) in this area. DT has drafted regulations to implement the High-speed Interoperability
Directive. HSE has also played a full part in influencing the development of the proposed European Railway

Safety Directive.

1.32  Throughout the HSE Rail Programme there has been extensive consultation with stakeholders,

including safety representatives and Trade Unions. 1o ensure all views are properly considered.
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Table 10 Control of Major Accident Hazards Regulations
(COMAH)

1.32  COMAH was introduced on 1 April 1999 and aims to prevent and mitigate major chemical incidents
that could harm people and the environment. HSE and the Environment Agency (EA) act jointly as the
Competent Authority (CA) in England and Wales and HSE and the Scottish Environment Protection Agency
(SEPA) act jointly as the CA in Scotland. HSE has discharged its statutory duties to:

® assess safety reports within a reasonable time and convey their conclusions to operators;

L] prohibit operations if there are serious deficiencies in the measures (o prevent or mitigate the
consequences of a major incident;

(3 investigate major accidents ensuring appropriate urgent, medium and long term measures are taken

and make recommendations for fulure prevention;

implement an inspection programme for all COMAH establishments;

provide advice on land use planning in respect of risks from major accidents; and
[ ] notify the EC of Major Accidemts.

Key programmes of work for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03

Regulating top tier sites
There are currently 357 top tier sites and 717 lower tier sites. More establishments have been brought into scope
with the full application of COMAH to explosives and the extension of classification requirements to a wider range
of substances as a result of changes to the Chemical (Hazard Information and Packaging for Supply) Regulations.
MNew entrants safety reports are due in February 2002, The changed requirements for chemical hazard classification
and labelling will take effect summer 2002 and safety reports for wop tier sites will be due April 2003, HSE's
intervention programmes have been developed in liaison/consulation with relevant stakeholders, including Trade
Unions and Trade Associations {mainly through the Chemical and Downstream Oil Industries Forum (CDOIF).







Table 11 Offshore

HSE ensures that risks to people who work offshore in the upstream petroleum industry and in the whole of the
Mmmm¢Mnﬁhmm inland, are properly controlled. It does this through a programme of inspection,
assessment, investigation, enforcement. advice and education.

Key programmes of work 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Table 12 Gas Conveyance and on shore major hazard
pipelines

The Gas Safety (Management) Regulations’ (GSMR) aim. by a safety case permissioning regime, is to ensure
that the risks arising from conveying gas are adequately controlled. These include the convevor’s arrangements
for preventing a supply ‘emergency’, maintaining the gas transmission and distribution network, dealing with
and investigating gas escapes and gas quality, HSE assess the safety of major hazard pipelines by examining
theirdesign.mﬂ-inte.gﬁty under the Pipeline Safety Regulations.

~Key programmes of work 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Table 14 Nuclear

HSE is responsible for regulation, through licensing. of the nuclear industry 1o ensure protection of the public
and workers, The nuclear indusiry continues to present fresh challenges o effective regulation, particularly
through the ageing of plant, the shift towards decommissioning and waste management programmes, the impact
of electricity marker reforms, and HSE's increasing responsibilities relating to Ministry of Defence (MOD) sites,

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03













SECURING COMPLIANCE
Introduction

1.33 El'lﬁ]fﬂ.'»::!inil'l and other regulatory activities to secure compliance with the law are at the core of HSE's
and local authorities” work. HSE and local authorities share responsibility for enforcement of health and safety
law and work together to secure consistency of standards. HSE has responsibility for securing compliance in
over 740 000 establishments and local authorities secure compliance in around 1 194 D00 establishments.
During 2002/03 HSE and local authorities have continued to undertake programmes of preventive inspections,
investigations of incidents and complaints and formal enforcement work and have taken forward specific

campaigns in cenain areas focused on improving compliance.

1.34 This mix of preventive inspection and reactive investigation is based on the principle that prevention

of harm is the primary aim. HSE carry oul investigations in line with its criteria and procedures for selecting

RIDDOR (the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Ocourrences Regulations) incidents and
complaints. We investigate incidents to learn lessons and influence the law and guidance, o prevent them

happening again, and to put serious breaches of legal duty before the counts. Generally we investigate:

& all fatalities arising out of work activities (excluding those relating 1o road traffic accidents);

L certain RIDDOR-defined major injuries, diseases and dangerous occurrences related to the severity of

the outcome;

[ ] all RIDDOR incidents likely to give rise 1o serious public concern. whether major or minor injuries or

dﬂlig'.:l"l.'il.lfi oCcumences; and

o all RIDDOR incidents where there is likely to have been a serious breach of health and safety law.

whether major or minor injuries or dangerous occurrences.

Enforcement policy

1.35  Inspectors enforce the law in accordance with HSC’s revised Enforcement Policy Statement
(http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/hscl5.pdf) and apply HSE's Enforcement Management Model
{http://www.hse.gov.uk/enforce/emm.pdf) a framework which helps inspectors make enforcement decisions.
HSE continues to report on enforcement action in the Annual Offences and Penalties Report: the Report for

2002/03 will be published in auumn 2003, A copy can be found on hitp://www.hse.gov.uk/enforce/index.htm.

Securing Compliance

1.36  FOD inspections in 2002/03 focused on effective control of the hazards identified under the Priority
Programmes as the prime means of judging duty holders’ control of risks. Other risks evidently of concemn or
which were raised by employers or employees were dealt with as they arose. HSE has developed performance
indicators for each of the hazard-based Priority Programmes against which were recorded the standards found
when visiting workplaces and against which further improvement can be measured. 2002/03 was the first year
of using this new tool for evaluation and assessment and thus provides a baseline for measuring improvement.
Over 30 000 inspection visits made by FOD inspectors have been recorded using this tool. An analysis of these

inspections is currently being carried out.
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Table 16 Inspecting high risk premises

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2001/02 Progress during 2002/03

Table 17 Action in industry sectors and on cross cutting
hazards

The following tables report on key actions in industry sectors and for cross-sector hazards that were taken
forward in 2002/03.

Key programmes of work during 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03
















Table 18 Local authorities

1.37  The work of more than 400 LAs in England, Scotland and Wales is influenced and co-ordinated by the
Health and Safety Executive and local authorities Enforcement Liaison Committee (HELA). Each year, HELA
produces a Stratégic Plan to guide LAs’ enforcement activities and to ensure a consistent approach among LAs
and between HSE and LAs. The HELA Strategy reflects the HSC's Strategic priorities and is supplemented by
detailed operational guidance to promote the adoption of common objectives and work in partnership with
HSE.

1.38 A full report of the contribution of LAs to the Commission’s and HELA's Strategic Plans is contained
in the HELA Annual Report and the National Picture of Health and Safety in the Local Authority Enforced
Sectors. Current publications relate to 2002. The reports for 2003 are expected to be published in early
November., Full details of HELA's work can be found on the HELA pages of HSE s Website at
http:/www.hse.gov.uk/lau/

1.39  LAs have a major role to play in reducing incidents and ill health and the key to achieving these is for
LAs to work together better to improve compliance. encourage consistency and promote best practice.

Plans for 2002 /03 Progress during 2002/03

The Synergy Programme

This is a programme of work agreed by HSE and local authorities to maximise their collective influence on the
health and safety system through an improved partnership and new ways of working. The programme will
result in a policy framework for determining allocation arrangements between HSE and local authorities and
improved operational arrangements in the field; improved strategic arrangements between local authorities,
business and Trade Unions; improved targeting of enforcement effort with fewer interventions in lower risk
premises and more in higher risk premises: and improved health and safety in premises currently not registered
by HSE or local authorities.

Progress: An evaluation of the Dry-cleaning Synergy Project was completed and its findings will contribute 1o
the forthcoming Strategic Review of HSE/LA joint working.

61









MANDATORY ACTIVITIES
Introduction

1.40  Over 2002/03 HSE planned 1o deliver a range of policy, technical and information activities to meet

the mandate given by statute and Government. These included activities to:

(] maodernise and simplify the regulatory framework;

[ ] provide appropriate information and advice;

™ promote risk assessment and technical knowledge: and

® operale statutory schemes. ,

Table 20 Revitalising Health and Safety (RHS)

HSC and HSE will drive up health and safety performance in cooperation with employers, their associations,
workers. Trade Unions and health and safety professionals in particular through progressing the ten-point
strategy and 44 action points in RHS,

Alms/Targets

deliver the RHS Strategy Statement targets by 2004 and 2010,

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Table 21 Securing Health Together - SH2

HSE and local authorities will continue to support the ten year strategy to improve occupational health
including developing the SH2 stakeholder framework, the SH2 website and publishing appropriate information
and data.

Aims: to achieve the targets in Securing Health Together:
Targets (in addition 1o the health targets in Revitalising Health and Safety):

L] 20% reduction in ill health to members of the public caused by work activity.

L] Evervone currently in employment but off work due to ill health or niir;ahi[it:,r is. where necessary and
appropriate, made aware of opportunities for rehabilitation back in to work as soon as possible. I

] Everyone carrently not in employment due to ill health or disability is, where necessary and
appropriate. made aware of and offered opportunities to prepare for and find work.

L An additional target - an increase in the use of occupational health support by 10% by 2003 — has also
been agreed.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03






Table 22 Work to modernise and simplify the regulatory
framework

Small firms, new patterns of employment & vulnerable groups

HSE and local authorities will seek to improve arrangements for the management of health and safety in au'mll
firms; in areas where patterns of employment are changing: and with groups that are hard to reach or at
particular risk.

Aims

raise awareness of health and safety issues;

make information on controlling risks and suppont more readily available to these groups:
improve partnership and working relationships with stakeholders:

better involvement of these groups in policy formulation;

benter regulation and improved compliance; and

support delivery of RHS and implementation of Government policy on social inclusion,

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Cross Government Working on Health

In line with the SH2 strategy for joint working across Government HSE and local authorities will contribute to
cross-Ciovernment action on health including:

] health inequalities;

[ rehabilitation and job retention; and

[ ] promoting better working environments (including passive smoking and violence).

Adms

[ ] reduce ill health, and improved rehabilitation and employment opportunities for people with
dizabilities;

[ ] improve working partnerships across Government and with external organisations;

[ develop positive approaches to job retention and vocational rehabilitation: and .

L] continue work on HSC's programme on work related violence so that the success in mﬁeﬁn&HSﬁ’é}-ﬁ K
target to reduce violent incidents by 109 by 2003, can be assessed in 2004,

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Improving worker participation in health & safety and corporate resp-misihilltles

HSC will seek to increase employee involvement in the management of health and safety. This will meet
Governmental commitments to review and harmonise employee consultation arrangements into a single
package. HSC will also seck to introduce greater corporate responsibility for health and safety including health
and safety reporting and guidance for directors on their health and safety responsibilities.

Aims

® greater worker engagement in health and safety in the workplace anﬂmacmtedhnilhandsnﬁqgv
improvements as a resull; Es

® improved management of occupational risk with associated reduction in health and safety failures and
increased Board Member awareness of health and safety responsibilities; and

[ ] greater engagement of the insurance industry in risk reduction.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03




Eumpun and international work

In the European Union (EU) and intemationally HSC and HSE will continue to play an active and constructive
role to assure the delivery of UK obligations, to promote UK policy and influence and to shape EU and
international agendas including the European Commission’s Occupational Safety and Health Strategy. This

work will focus on:










Chemicals policy and regulation

HSE has continued to contribute to EU and international policy on chemicals including the management aud
supply of dangerous substances and preparations and the transpont of dangerous goods by road and rai
has also worked 1o provide information and guidance to promote the safe management of haz.mﬂuus r:}wnnmlﬁ
and substances including asbesios.













Physical Agenis

HSE will continue to commit policy and technical expertise on physical agents, focusing on completing
negotiations on EU directives on noise and vibration.

Workplace Safety

RHS Action Point 16 commits HSC to action on improving health and safety conditions for those affected by
changing patterns of work including contractorisation and home working.
















Table 24 Promoting risk assessment and technical
knowledge

HSC’s science and technology mission is to develop and apply science and technology 1o provide a sound
independent knowledge base to evaluate the risks to people’s health and safety from work activities and the
means fo assess and control these risks in order o help achieve its objectives. High quality science and
technology provides an essential contribution to the formulation of UK and intermational regulatory decisions
regarding people’s health and safety. HSC's and HSE's activity in this area focuses on providing the scientific
and technical underpinning essential to the goal of being an effective regulator and ensuring that the policy and

standards set are technically sound and cost effective.

A Quality Statement for the implementation of the Chief Scientific Adviser’s Guidelines 2000 on scientific

advice and policy making has been drawn up and posted on the HSE intranel,

HSC/E’s Science and innovation Strategy

HSC/E’s reputation is based on its science and technological expertise. To enable HSC/E to be an effective
regulator and to ensure that the policy and standards that it sets are technically sound and cost effective. high
quality scientific and technological underpinning is essential - science must be at the heart of policy making.
HSC/E published a joint Science and Innovation Strategy in October 2001, This describes how HSC and HSE
will apply science and technology to support their mission to ensure risks to peoples health and safety from

work activities are properly controlled. Among other things, the strategy will:

[ ] capitalise on existing strengths in HSE s ability to respond 1o operational needs;
[ ] make transparent and direct linkages to the high level targets in the HSC Strategic Plan; and
[ ] place a high priority on partnerships 1o identifly gaps in scientific understanding and 1o share

knowledge, especially with the national and imemational links already in place.
Research and technical knowledge

o HSE annually spends about 15% of its grant in aid on commissioned science and technology. both
research and reactive work. HSE planned 1o spend £37.6million (at current prices) on commissioned
Science and Technology (S&T) in 2002/2003. Overall expenditure on commissioned S&T was close o
the plan of about £39m. Of this, the figure spent on research was £17.8m, not including research funded
through HSE by industry. Research results are placed in full and free of charge on the HSE website.

L The HSC/E Science and Innovation Strategy describes the reorganisation of research and suppont
activity in line with the Programme Blocks in the Strategic Plan (2001-04). Priority Programme
Managers and those with responsibility for the other key blocks will identify and oversee research
which address both specific and generic investigation of hazards 1o meet both policy and operational
requirements to achieve HSE's priority targets and support work within its mandatory activities.
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Progress: There has been good progress to implement this Strategy during 2002/03. The four Programme
Blocks have all put in place appropriate arrangements (o manage their research and suppont allocations,

including Science and Innovation Advisory Groups to advice on business priorities.

[ ] Research objectives, specific areas of current interest and new and emerging areas of interest within
the Programme Blocks are identified in the HSE Strategic Research Outlook document (available on
the HSE website).

[ ] Kev advisers 10 HSE policy makers are HSE's own scientific and technical staff, who provide
considerable in-house expertise and extensive links to the wider national and intemational scientific

COMMmunity.

[ ] HSE employs scientists and engineers who provide practical support and research: regulatory scientists
andd specialist inspectors who provide support and advice including commissioning work 1o improve
understanding of risks to health and safety. to fill gaps in scientific. technical and medical knowledge
and 1o develop and promote management and technical measures o minimise risk, Typical activities
include:

- cccupational hygieng including chemicals, biological and physical agents, erzsonomics and
psvcho-social issues including stress;
oceupational safety including gas and chemical process safety and electrical and control systems;
and

- mechamical and structural imtegnty, risk assessment methodologies and application and human

factors.

Progress: A major study of how HSE uses its corporate scientific and technological resources. undertaken as
part of the HSE Change Programme, showed that improvements were needed in a number of key areas, eg
horizon scanming, management of 54&1 knowledge and feeding implications about S&1 developments into

strategic planning. Actions taken to address these weaknesses included:

[ ] The formation of a new Corporate Science and Analytical Services Directorate, headed by a full time
Chief Scientist, which will aim to ensure that HSE policies, plans and programmes of work are based
on sound evidence — especially scientific, economic, risk and statistical evidence: and

L] the dispersal of many regulatory scientists and specialist inspectors to Corporate Topic Groups located

in Directorates which are the dominant customers for their expertise bul managed as a corporate

FESOLUNCE,
The Health and Safety Laboratory

HSE’s in-house agency, the Health and Safety Laboratory (HSL) undertakes research to enhance and add value

b its primary role, which is to:

L provide casework support, evaluations of risk assessment methodologies and assessment of technical

standards elc; and

. forensic support - investigation of incidents which may require research and intelligence activities.
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Negotiation of a PFI deal to design, build and operate a new laboratory facility to enable HSL to collocate all
its functions at Buxton is all but complete. Construction work will commence in 2002/2003 and HSL anticipate
moving in to the new Facility in the late summer of 2004,

Progress: Constriction work has commenced on the new laboratory facility.

-

To secure access to expertise beyond the core capabilities of HSL, HSE has ¢stablished a Framework Technical
Support Agreement with seven external contractors (with an indicative spend of about £2m pa).

Risk assessment management and education

Decision-making on the basis of risk is fundamental to HSE's regulatory activities and to promoting cross-
departmental co-operation in risk management.

HSE's approach to risk assessment is 1o ensure:

[ ] zood regulation through proportionalily. consistency, transparency, targeting and accountability that
promotes cross departimental co-ordination in risk management;

[ ] effective risk communication 1o help stakeholders understand HSE's messages and to enable them o
participate in the decision-making process;

] yvoung people receive sufficient risk education to equip them with the necessary knowledge and skills
on risk awareness; and ]

[ ] safety critical professionals are encouraged to consider risk in both work practices and design.

Plans for 2002/03 Progress during 2002/03







Table 25 Statutory and other approval schemes

In some key arcas of risk HSE will continue to bperate statutory assessment or approval schemes aimed af

ensuring product safety before supply.
Chemical product safety

The HSE is part, or the whole, of the UK Competent Authority or the relevant UK regulatory authority for
several intemational programmes on chemicals and their potential effect on health, safety and the environment.
Some programmes, eg under the Notification of New Substances and Existing Substances Regulations, place
prescriptive legal duties on HSE. Most of these programmes operate on the supply side. establishing a
regulatory regime for industrial chemicals at their point of supply which then guides the risk management of

the chemical as it moves through the supply chain.

|’rﬂgl‘t$$ du I‘ilig 2002/03: HSE continnes o meet commitments wnder these progranes, botl in progressing
the evaluation of subsiances assigned ro the UK and in contributing o the international debate on cliemical
safety. The two progranumes are due to be replaced in the Tong term and HSE has been contributing 1o the
international debarte (in which DEFRA leads for the UK) on the best way forward. Within the Novification of

New Subsiances Regilations (NONS) Programme, 205 items were processed against prediciion of 186,
Pesticides and hiocides approval

Pesticides can present h'lgl'l risks to humans, {particularly the worker) and the environment. They warrant a
statutory approval scheme, HSE is the Competent Authority for approval of biocides and under the Control of
Pestucides Regulations has the UK lead for worker protection for both agricultural and non-agricultural
pesticides. HSE carries out the technical appraisal of non-agricultural pesticides and contributes to the
occupational risk assessment of agricultural pesticides. As the Biocidal Products Regulations 1998 are rolled

out there will be increasing demand on HSE's activities in this area.

Progress during 2002003: Obligarions as regulatory authority for non-agriculineal pesticides and on behalf of
HSE ax Comperent Authority (CA) for Biocides were met. The p.r't*fﬁ:'n_’:f onrpui of 200 approvals was reached
with W% being within the vevised target dates for completion, Five veviews of older pesiicides were completed

and a record 12 133 enguiries were answered. Receipr income for HSE was maintained.
Employment Medical Advisory Service (EMAS)

The Employment Medical Advisory Service consists of doctors (medical inspectors) and nurses (occupational
health inspectors) who carry out primary inspection of health risks in the workplace, investigate cases of ill
health and provide advice to HSE and local authority inspectors on all aspects of occupational health issues.
EMAS also runs statutory schemes for medical examinations for lead. asbestos, ionising radiation, chemicals,

compressed air and diving.,

Electrical Equipment Ceriification Service (EECS)

HSC Annual Report 2001/02 reported the background to the decision to close EECS by 30 June 2003. EECS
ceased trading at the end of September 2002,
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MANAGING THE ORGANISATION
Business improvement

1.41  HSE achieves continuous (mainly incremental) improvement in all its activities through a rolling
Business Improvement Plan (BIP) which has been operational since April 2000. During 2002/3, HSE's
*Changing HSE’ programme ran in parallel to BIP but with separate management arrangements. Changing HSE
is looking at key strategic, organisational, positioning and delivery options to ensure HSE continues 1o make
the maximum beneficial impact on work-related health and safety in a changing world. With this more
fundamental review in progress, the scope for incremental improvements to current business models has been
more limited. Nevertheless some important incremental improvements have been delivered this vear. The out-
turn shows HSE achieved savings valued at £12 655 581 for the year achieved through a combination of cash
savings and quantifiable added benefits. This is equivalen ta 6.5 of toval adminisirative cosis in resource
terms (excluding HSL) of £207 224 66,71 - exceeding onr target of 3% for vear-on-vear savings.

Resources
1.42  Full details of HSC/E accounts for 2002/03 can be found in Part 2.

Staffing

Table 26 Total HSC/E staff in post by occupational group

* Resource Accounts Guidance now requires inclusion of agency/temporary staff and imward secondmenis/loans.

91







Recruitment

1.44  Recruitment into HSE is conducted in line with the Civil Service Commissioners® Recruitment Code.
We operate systems and procedures that meet the Code and ensure that recruitment is carried out on the basis
of fair and open competition and selection on merit. The systems and procedures are subject to periodic internal
and external audits, The Code requires departments to publish summary information about their recruitment

and the use of permitted exceptions 1o the principles of fair and open competition and selection on merit,
1.45  During the year,

] 300 staff were recruited

L 7 *New Deal’ appointments were made under fair and open competition. The New Deal Programme is

a Government initiative 1o assist the long-term unemployed:

[ ] 27 UK secondmentsfloans into and out of HSE and 14 overseas secondments were made:
L ] 1 extension of a short term appointment beyond the initially publicised period. and
L ] 13 re-appointments of former civil servants were made.

Table 28

Recruitment level Number Male Female White  MNon-white  Not declared®  Disabled
5CS 2 2 {0 2 LI 0 {
Band 1 | 1 0 1 0 (W] 0
Band 2 3 2 | 1 0 2 0
Band 3 48 40 8 23 0 25 0
Band 4 HE 50 38 i 3 17 0
Band 5 15 9 6 2 2 13 0
Band 6 143 3l 92 f]
Total 30H) 155 145 07 3 57 0
Motes:

nformation on ethnic status is not always provided.

Private Finance Initiative (PFl)/Public Private Partnerships (PPP)

l.46  REFIT — IT: In June 2001, HSE let a PEI/PPP contract to CMG UK Lid, working in parinership with
Computacenter, to provide IT and consultancy services including IT assets to all HSE users over the next ten
vears. A post implementation review was conducted between January and March 2003 1o review the benefits
that had been realised in the first complete vear of the service. CMG UK Lid. merged with Logica in December

2002 1o form LogicaCMG Lid., and the REFIT parinership continues under these new arrangements.

1.47 Merseyside HQ Project: Following a competitive exercise to provide new serviced accommodation for
its North-West HQ, Kajima Development were chosen as the preferred bidder in December 2002, Negotiations

are continuing with a view to finalising a contract by July 2003
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Resource accounting and budgeting
.32 The switch from cash accounting to resource accounting by central Government Departments became
cffective from st April 2001, HSE is now planning, controlling and accounting for expenditure on a resource

hasis.

Reducing fraud
1.53  The levels of fraud committed against HSE are small. We are continuously seeking to further reduce it
by systematic risk identification and improving control measures. Where fraud is detected, we press for the

stromgest possible action aganst those committing offences to act as a deterrent o others,

Prompt payment of bills
1.54  HSE's and H5L's combined payment performance figure for the 2002-03 linancial year is 98.9%.
Although below the Government target of 100% this is a very good oultum and we continuously seek 1o

increase our performance level by improving the payment process,

Charging

1.56 A review of the impact of charging i indusiries covered by the Control of Major Accident Hazards
Regulations, the administrative processes of charging, the effectiveness of the queries and disputes procedure
and the reasonableness of HSE's chargeout rates were described in last year’s report. Following on from that
reviews of the impact of charging in the Offshore, Railways and Gas transportation industries were completed
in autumn 2002, The results have been reported o Ministers who agreed that, as with COMAH industries, no

fundamental change should be made 1o the approach to charging in these indusiries,

I.57  The industry-wide Charging Review Group made its annual report 1o HSC on 3 December 2002, Issues

on which progress was repornted included:

L emerging findings on the reviews of the impact of charging in the Railways, Offshore and Gas

Transportation industries;
L the operation of the Queries and Disputes procedure (and guidance on inj;
[ ] charging guides; and frequency of meetings.

1.58  As pant of HSC's policy of recovering costs of ‘permissioning regimes’ charging was introduced from
1 April 2003 for approval of dosimetry services under the Radiation {(Emergency Preparedness and Public
Information) Regulations 2001. Charges for granting, re-assessing and amending licences under the Asbestos

(Licensing) Regulations 1983 were re-structured to operate from the same date.

Information technology

1.59  This was the first year of the services being delivered under the REFIT PEI/PPP, which has been the
subject of a post implementation review. in advance of a benefits evaluation review to be conducted by the
Office of Government Commerce. High service levels are being achieved and a major technology refresh has

started. In addition, there was progress on about 40 projects including:



a information security - further work on implementing BS779%9 (a detailed security standard) and

firewalls:

e conversion of business critical business systems from Lotus SmartSuite to Microsoft Office:
e changes to existing systems: eg RASP - our finance system:
] development of new systems: egsystems to support land wse planning: a ready reckoner for health and

safety management; joining up HSE. Environment Agency and the Scottish Environmental Protection
Agency 1o manage some of their duties under the COMAH Regulations; e-forms, contenl management

and corporale communications;

[ ] developing the outline business justification for electronic document and records management, and for

COIN — the Corporate Information System for HSE's operational Directorates: and

] enhancing the management of IT enabled projects to the standards set out by the Office of Government

Commerce.

Equality and diversity

160 Main achievements during 2002/3 were:

Leadership and taking responsibility
We have worked with HSE Directorates/Divisions 1o make sure diversity becomes part of HSE's culture and
encouraging SCS members to act as and be scen as a corporate group leading change, fulfilling the challenge of

leading by example.
1. Reinforcing behaviour

Al the end of October Board Members were contacted to establish what had been done, following a Board

discussion in July, to address the issues raised in a briefing note about unacceptable behaviours in HSE.

The responses suggest that most staff have been given the opporiunity to see a briefing note or to participate in
other ways such as discussions on stress ete. Staff were shocked that there are people in HSE who have
displayed the extremes of behaviours mentioned in the briefing note. to the point of disbelief in some cases.

Many did not recognise the behaviours as the day to day reality.

Directorates/Divisions said that staff appear 1o have a reasonable understanding of the standards of behaviour.
Where standards have slipped - and a few cases have emerged - complaints have generally been dealt with
quickly and appropriately. The main lessons seem to centre upon effective management, leading by example
and taking swilt action, encouraging an open culture and dealing with situations quickly before they get out of
hanid.

HSE has redrafted its Staff Handbook Chapter on unacceptable behaviour to make it easier to follow and to
improve access. Together with the launch of our Harassment Contact Adviser Network and increased
confidence generated by the diversity workshops, individuals feel more empowered to challenge unacceptable

behaviour as they perceive il.






Equality Proofing performance reviews and other HR systems

1. Performance management and pay arrangements

A pilon ok place throughout the 2002/3 reporting year to revise HSE's performance management and pay
arrangements in support of the Civil Service Reform Programme. The aim is to obtain stronger performance
management in the organisation by promoting more open and honest discussion, as well as a sharper focus on
individual development and continuous improvement. Originally. it was planned o implement new
arrangements from April 2003, but the initial pilot identified areas for further development. Further pilting

will now take place from April 2003 with the intention of implementing new arrangements from April 2004

Equal opportunities

1. Pathways Development Programme

There were six internal applications. of which four were successful — one of whom was also successful on

SPATS and subsequently withdrew from Pathways.

1. Windsor Fellowship

HSE 100k a total of 17 Windsor Fellows in 2002/03, Ten students returned in 2002 for their 2nd placement and
seven new students have been recruited for their first placement. We also continued our sponsorship of the

Windsor Fellowship Open Day and have agreed 1o offer further sponsorship for the next three years.

3. Disability bursary

One person was sponsored on the Scheme in 2002 and we have agreed to sponsor the Scheme for 2003/04.

Race Equality Scheme and Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000
1.61 H5C/E’s race equality scheme was published on the 31st May 2002, Tt details the actions to be laken
between May 2002 and May 2005 to ensure equality of opportunity and eliminate unlawful discrimination, thus

complying with duties on HSC and HSE under the Race Relations ( Amendment) Act 2000,

L.62  Section 6 of the Scheme sets out specific actions 1o be taken during each year of the plan. with a total
of 21 actions identified to be completed by 31st May 2003, Section 7 of the scheme identifies that progress
against the plan will be reviewed on a six monthly basis with the results reported to HSC and the HSE Board.

Al the end of each year we are required to publish a report detailing progress against the plan.
I.63  Progress against each of the 21 specific actions identified for year one are largely complete, with many

ongoing. eg monitoring of personnel policies, The revised scheme and progress against the plan will be

published in summer 2003,
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Progress towards targets

Table 29 Disability
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1.64  Our targets were set in April 1999 using an analysis of factors such as: the current situation across all
Job bands; age profiles; likely promotion rates; the effects of increased recruitment activily in attracting ethnic
minority applicants, women and people with disabilities: and the impact of awareness raising aclivities,
particularly on the development of stafl from underrepresented groups. To these Factors we then applied an
element of “stretch’ to ensure our targets are genuinely challenging. We will be reviewing the targets shortly

when the results of the 2001 population census are analysed.

Staff training and development

1.65  The decision was taken during the early part of the 2002/2003 1o apply for Corporate 1iP recognition.
This application ran in parallel with those for the renewal of IiP status made by PD, H5L, PEFD. SASD. The
assessor has interviewed staff in these Directorates, the Chairman of HSC and all three members of the HSE
Executive. The assessor has indicated that he will be recommending to liP UK that HSE be granted Corporate

liP status.

1.66  For centrally held contracts for training, 575 courses ran with 4890 staff trained. Subject matter ranges
from general subjects such the HSE induction course, HSE's oceupational health and safety arrangements,
management training, personal development and 1T skills, to those for specific jobs such as legal training for
regulators, or the Occupational Health and Safety Postgraduate Diploma run by Heriot-Watt. We have also
launched several new courses covering Management Development for Band 6 staff, Mentoring. Team
effectiveness, Writing for the Ark network and in occupational health areas, eg the Manual Handling Assessor

COUrse,

Government targets on sickness absence

6T In May 2001, new arrangements were introduced 1o manage sickness absence more effectively, The
arrangements are designed o support line managers in removing barriers, wherever possible, that prevent staff
from attending work, which take account of health, personal and domestic circumstances. The guidance
emphasises thal managers should be supportive and sensitive when dealing with absence issues. However,
when repeated periods of absence cannot be justified, managers are required (o agree attendance improvement

targets with staff which, if not achieved, could lead o dismissal.

1.68  From April 2002 w0 March 2003 there was a total of 35 100 working days lost in HSE through sickness
absence, an increase in the average of working days lost from 8.06 in 2002 10 8.36. However, the overall
sickness absence trend is still downwards; the 2003 figures include two individuals who medically retired in
March 2003 after lengthy absences. Because their total absence is included in the 2002 2003 figures. these two

cases have distorted the latest figures. Excluding these two absences, the 2003 average figure is 8.02.

1.69  The new amangements are currently under review, 1o ensure that the improvements are maintained and

where appropriate the arrangements will be modified 1o further support stalf and management.

Green housekeeping

170 HSE is fully committed to pursuing and promoting best environmental practice across its estate and
has continued to implement several initiatives and introduce new techniques and technologies to make HSE a
‘greener’ place to work. Activities included:

[L1]



L] implementing a green housekeeping strategy:

[ ] continued participation in the Public Sector Energy Efficiency campaign 1o reduce annual energy
consumption on HSE's estate demonstrating value for money in energy procurement and usage, as well
as cost-effective management;

[ ] establishing sound data collection methods and baseline information for measuring progress against the
12.5% target reduction in annual emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouses gases in HSE
buildings by 2008-2012;

[ ] achieving certification of 15014001 for the functions of HSE™s Business Services Division's
Environmental Management System (EMS), maintaining and developing the EMS and considering
opponunities for implementing such systems elsewhere on the estate; i

L embedding consideration of environmental implications when decisions are taken on purchasing and

the use of resources:

o printing HSC/E publications, wherever possible, on environmentally friendly paper, using
environmentally friendly processes;

[ ] setting up reliable systems to measure the amount of solid waste produced by HSE to meet the cross-
Government target (o achieve 706 recovery and recyeling in 2003-2004, extending recycling schemes
in HSE premises and continuing to reduce paper consumption by encouraging the use of recyeled
paper — 1005 of paper purchased, under contract, by HSE comprises [00% post consumer waste; and

[ ] completing four Building Research Establishment’s Environmental Appraisal Method (BREEAM)
surveys in multi occupied buildings during the period and commencing a further two.

Business risk

1.71 At its meeting on 2 October the Board agreed a high level risk register. This set out six generic risks
and a ‘risk owner” was identified for each. The six generic risks were analysed into twenty-five more specific
risks and control systems for each identified. Work is on going to check the effectiveness of these controls and

whether they are appropriate.

Welsh Language Scheme

1.72  The Welsh NVOQ training has continued this year and the success of this has seen more Welsh speaking
representatives from HSE assisting the public at various events throughout Wales, These include the
Agricultural Safety Awareness Days organised by HSE, the TUC Cymru Conference, The Royal Welsh Show

and many more. HSE has also continued its provision of Welsh language media interviews on request,

1.73  HSE produced its first back-to-back bilingual leaflet this vear, adding to the wide range of publications
already avaalable from HSE.
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Devolution

.74  HSC/E has a well-established commitment to working in partnership with the devolved administrations
of Scotland & Wales in areas of common and closely related interests, H5E has good working relationships
with both the Scotland Office (whose Ministers have been involved in promoting key health and safety
messages), the Scottish Executive and the National assembly of Wales on a wide range of issues, many of
which are devolved: these include public health, agriculture, education and enterprise. The Scottish Health and
Salery Revitalisers Forum has been set up by key stakeholders, with support from HSE, to help deliver RHS
and SH2 effectively in Scotland while 2 new occupational health support service for SMEs. *Safe and Healthy
Working ', has been set up in parinership with, and is funded by, the Scottish Executive. In Wales, work
continues 1o ensure that the initiatives are embedded into the work of the Assembly and other Key organisations
(eg MHS Wales)

Employee involvement

1.75  Itis HSE's policy to consult HSE Trade Unions. representing staff in HSE, as widely as possible in
order to provide the opportunity for HSE Trade Unions o influence the development, and application of
proposals relating o major organisational and staffing changes. There 15 a formal consultation structure
between HSE management and unions within the Whitley svstem at both national and local levels, The HSE
Whitley Council is the central forum for discussion of all matters of concern to H3E a5 a whole, between
HSEs management and Trade Unions. MNational Whitleys are held quarterly and chaired by the Director
General, HSE consults and negotiates with the Trade Unions about all issues affecting the terms and conditions
of employvment of stall. The H5E Pay Agreement provides a Tramework for the annual negotiations on all pay
matters. For example during 200203 a number of staff have been involved in the development and piloting of
new performance management and pay arrangements. The active involvement of intermediary groups, such as
personnel contacts in Directorates/Divisions, is also sought 1o help review and develop personnel policies so

that they meei H5E s business needs.

HSE’s Management Plan 2001 - 04

1.76  HSE’s Management Plan was published in October 2001 and sets out HSE's management priorities for
the next three vears and the acuvinies that the orgamisation will focus on o progress these prionities, The Plan
was developed to support our delivery of the Strategic Plan, and 1o help ensure that HSE is fit enough and
smart enough o deliver ns key priorities, 1t covers H5E s long-term management strategy, including its

approach to Modernising Government.
[t is o wide-ranging and detailed plan under four key priorities. To:

L] Lead and look after staff valuing their contribution and their diversity and the benefits this brings to
the way we engage with stakeholders.

® Giet the right people in the right place at the right time, building and making best use of their skills 1o
deliver key objectives.

L Manage our information resources and the knowledge, expentise and experience of our staff, and apply
it to our priorities efficiently and effectively.
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. Secure better business planning through integrating the management of our resources, svstems and
procedures to deliver high quality business objectives in an efficient and responsive way and giving

value for money.

For detailed progress on the 2nd year of the Plan see Annex |

Health and Safety in HSE

1.77  Itis HSE's policy to set and maintain exemplary standards of health and safety for its staff and
contractors. HSE staff are exposed to a wide variety of potential hazards to their health and safety ranging from
the normal office based risks to those that regulatory stalf meet on site, eg offshore installations, construction
sites. asbestos removal operations, working on the rail system etc. HSE also has a number of contractors (eg
facilities management and IT contractors) and temporary staff working on HSE premises. During the year HSE
continued 1o work towards achieving this aim and the targets set under Revitalising Health and Safety by

raising the profile of staff health and safery.

Monitoring of performance

1.78

L] The HSE Board discuss health and safety at every formal Board meeting, receiving the monthly
accident and ill health statistics and reports on significant health and safety issues.

] The Board discusses formal midyear and end of vear reports on HSE's performance which include
progress against the Corporate H&S plan. Audits are carried out by HSE's Health and Safety Adviser
(HSA) and considered by the Corporate Health and Safety Committee (CHSC). as well as local
inspections and audits.

] During the yvear a Benchmarking exercise with the Highways Agency was undertaken which was of
benefit to both organisations in demonstrating areas for improvement. For HSE this included reviewing
purchasing policy and control of lone workers.

Consultation

.79  HSE recognises the importance of consultation with its employees. The CHSC is the principal
consultation forum between the Executive and the HSE TUs. Justin McCracken, the Deputy Director General.
Operations, is the Board Champion for health and safety and chairs the CHSC. The committee meets three
limes a year. There are a number of local sile safety committees. Safety representatives are encouraged to be

involved in work place inspections and accident/fill health investigations,

Progress on the Health and Safety Plan for 2002/2003
1.800  The HSE Health and Safety Plan for 20022003 set a number of priorities:

- Musculoskeletal disorders: DSE - The number of DSE-related reports of ill health continues to cause
concem. Improved arrangementis for DSE assessments and tighter performance measures have been
implemented in all Direclorates with improved training for assessors. clearer procedures, information
and a discussion forum available on the intranet. 1o address the concerns of assessors, eg equipment

available. Intemational RSI day was used 1o raise awareness of key ergonomic issues

103



o Stress - The HSE Board in agreeing a stress strategy in June 02 recognised that they should be an early
adoptor of the approach and required Directorates o carry out risk assessments against the seven
factors identified in *Tackling Stress Together”. This has proved to be a challenging experience and
HSE s determined to learn from the outcomes. All Directorates now have an action plan based on the
risk assessments and progress will be monitored during the coming year. The raised profile of stress
has lead 1o a greater number of reponts of work related stress being received during the year:

[ ] Slip, trip accidents — campaigns and promaotions to reduce the number of accidents due to slips and
trips were held during the year 1o encourage a “just do it” approach to getting potential hazards
removed rather than leaving it 1o others:

[ ] H&S of non-HSE employees where HSE has responsibility. Risk assessments were carried oul where
HSE has a potential imerface with the public:

[ Monitoring and review — Directorates reported on sell’ audit against the Ministerial Checklist an mid
and year-end, identifying priority areas for action.

In 2003/4 the priorities are: 1
1.81  Auditing and monitoring performance against the Ministerial Checklist and Good Practice Guide, 1
identifying priority areas for action:

musculoskeletal disorders:
S1ress;

slips trips and falls;

the HE&S of contractors employed by HSE: and |
work-related road risk. |

e & @ @ @

Health and safety performance: Accident/ill health/near miss reporis
1.82  Accidents and work-related ill health, and near misses including dangerous incidents and verbal
abusefthreatening behaviour are reported and investigated. The increase in the number of reports this vear is
due to the higher profile of health and safety and increased awareness of the need 1o report incidents.

Mote:

The figures for non-HSE staff are included and shown in brackets.
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ANNEX 1 HSE’s Management Plan 2001 - 2004

1) Lead and look after staff

The Strategic Plan requires dramatic improvements in how HSE engages with stakeholders and applies
resources 1o deliver outcomes. For this HSE's workforce must be well motivated, trusted and effectively led.
Revitalising Health and Safety requires all public bodies to demonstrate best practice in health and safety. It is
our intention to achieve in our health and safety practices and procedures what we expect of the better
companies and 1o ensure that we meet the standards set out in our published guidance,

W want o improve the diversity of our organisation and meeting Cabinet Office targets are part of this. We
have made significant progress but much more needs 1o be done 1o see real improvements at all grades. There
are important benefits to be gained from increasing diversity within HSE and we must direct these towards
developing new ways of tackling health and safety and forging links with all our stakeholders.

Key priority Action proposed and Measurement Progress during
targets set 2002/03













2. Gel the right people in the right place at the right time

Tov deliver the Strategic Plan we must ensure that the right people are in the right posts at the right time. This
means improvements to our vacancy filling procedures to ensure they are effective and speedy and ensuring

staff have the right skills and experience 1o deliver the outputs required.

Key Priority Action proposed and Measurement Progress during 2002/03
targets set
















3. Manage information, knowledge and experience:

Information management: HSE has considerable information resources which must be effectively managed and

applied to support the delivery of the Strategic Plan. To help achieve its business objectives HSE must also

implement the Freedom of Information Act (FOI) and manage its information in a way that is open and accessible.
LY

Knowledge management: H5Es reputation hangs on the knowledge (expentise and experience) of all its staff. We

must manage our information resources better, recognise (and reward) knowledge sharing and develop and

communicate good practices about what works well in HSE.

Information technology and information services: electronic systems can help HSE meet stralegic objectives o
provide information and advice and to share knowledge. They can also help to improve customer services and meet
e-Government targeis. HSE has recently eniered into a new partnership with an I'T services provider which can
signiﬁcwly support business change including how our information and IT services will develop. HSE's
effectiveness also relies on providing key information and publicity services which are efficient and responsive to
customer needs.

Information security:

HSE's reputation relies on maintaining confidentiality, imegrity and availability of all its information. Ministers
‘have asked that all Government Departments achieve compliance with the Intemational Standard (ISO 17799) on
Information Security Management by December 2003,

Key Priority Action proposed and Measurement Progress during 2002/03
targets set
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. smbﬂterﬁuﬂnﬁs planning and better business management:

Ell_l_'r-siakghpldm-hg\re- an expectation that we deliver outputs and outcomes which meet their needs effectively
and efficiently, that we provide value for money and that we continuously improve the way we work. This
Tequires improvements in the way we plan our business and the way we deliver our services.

Better business planning also requires us to be better at managing corporate risks in line with Central
‘Govemment recommendations.

_Z'ii[g_!- Priority Action proposed and Measurement Progress during 2002/03
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ANNEX 2 END YEAR OPERATIONAL OUTPUTS
AND PERFORMANCE REPORT

The lollowing table provides information on H3E's Key operational outputs and performance measures for

2002003,

KEY OUTPUTS AND PERFORMANCE

for 2002/03 Profile Outturn Variance
Regulatory contacts 198 674 218 574 19 900
Preventive Inspections 80 502 84 234 3732
MNumber of incidents investigated 18 044 L1 251 (6T93)
G of incidents investigated B.2% 7.9% (0.3%)
Number of complaints investigated 23 845 23473 (372)
% of complainis investigated 8706 , f55% (2%)
Number of safety cases processed T 545 246

Regulatory contacts

The final cutiurn for numbers of regulatory contacts is 10% above profile. In HSEs Field Operations
Directorate (the main contributor). the final outturns for both inspection and regulatory contacts were above
profile. From 2003/4 this OPM will no longer be reported externally. rather we will report on how efficiently
we allocate front line operational resource o our priorities against our plans. However numbers of regulatory

contacts will continue to be wsed as an internal management information stream.

Investigating incidents and complaints

The final outturn for % of incidents investigated was 7.9% (0.3 percentage points below the end year target of
8.2%). this is partly explained by a change in the picture of incidents reported. We are confident that those
incidents that meet our incident selection criteria have been investigated. From 2003/4 this OPM will be
replaced with a targel to investigate 95% of incidents that meet our published investigation criteria. The final

outturn for the % of complaints investigated was 85% (2% percentage points below the end year target).

Safety cases

The linal number of safety cases processed is below the expected profile. This is because it has been necessary
o return many cases 1o duty holders for further action and these will be carried over into 2003/04. With safety
cases being returned it has been possible to divert this resource to regulatory contacts: this contributed to the

higher outturn on contacts for our Major Hazards Direciorates.
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HSC/E Mission: To ensure that risks to people’s health and safety from work
activities are properly controlled
Contextual indicators (the Envi:;gnment in which HSE carries out its work)

Uprated Fatal anﬂ major injury rate per 100 000 workers: 261.6 (2000/01); 268.9 (2001/02, provisional)

Tﬁtﬂd year ouitrn for Numbers q‘cqn:plﬂinﬂfaﬁﬂwd up is provisional.
3 Following an agreement between PEFD and Policy Directorates, the OPM for seis of regulations ACoPs, Consultative
Documents and new guidance introduced was not coflecred for 2002103,
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ANNEX 3 LEGISLATIVE TIMETABLE: EUROPEAN
PROJECTS

All projects and projected milestones in this timetable are subject to the resulis of consultation and. where
applicable, the adoption of the relevant European Directives.

Title of project/directive Action planned Progress made during 2002/03


































ANNEX 4 HSC ADVISORY COMMITTEES

The Health and Safety Commission has 15 Industry Advisory Committees and eight Subject Advisory

Committees as listed below:

Industry Advisory Committees Subject Advisory Committees

Adventure activities®
Agriculture
Ceramics**
Conslruction

Deep mined coal
Foundrigs®®#*
Health services
Higher and Further Educaton
Offshore

Paper and board
Printing

Railways

Eubber

Schools Education

Textiles

Dangerous substances
Genetic modification
lonising radiations***
ﬂi.'n:.‘up.'ll'u:ll'l.'il health
Nuclear safety

Toxic substances

Biocides Consultative Committes

Other Committees
Health and Safety

Executive and local
authorities Enforcement
Liaison Committee

(HELA)

*Fhe Advennire Activities Advisory Commitiee did nor meer the criteria laid down for HSC Advisory Conmmittecs status i
a decision was made in Aprl 20003 mos to reconssine in. Former members are currently considering apHions for seffing up

an Advenrnre Acrivities fndustry Lioison Comminee.

**The Ceramics Industry Advisory Committee has de-coupled fron the HSC s Advisory Committee arrangements, Its
successor — a valuntary, ripartite body 'CHARGE' (Ceramics, Heavy clay, Refractories, and Glass indusivies joint heath

and safery Advisory Comminee) has been established to take forward the RHS agenda in member indusiries

*=5The Tonising Radiations Advizory Comminee’s second term expired at the end of June 2002, with no major itents of
work ontstanding, Reconstitntion was nor appropriate, in the light of the HSC's review of its own wavs of working and the
lack of a subsiantial work programme over the next few vears. HSE is setting up the lonising Radiations Health and Safeiy

Forum to replace IRAC and to matntain a dialogue with stakeholders.

*EEET e Foundries Dchisiry Advisory Committee deconpled from the H3C's Advisory Committee arrangements on 17 April

2M13 and ow operates as an independent tripartite commuttee of wiich HSE is a member,

When committees produce and publish guidance they do so with the Commission’s endorsement. Subject
Advisory Committees allow the Commission to take views on difficult issues. typically of cross-departmental
interest. They provide formal consultation mechanisms in areas of high public and political sensitivity, such as
genetic modification; and the involvement of owside expens helps give legitimacy to their, and 1o the

Commission’s activities. They also act as a sounding board for HSE proposals.

H5C’s Advisory Commitiees encourage the joint participaiion of all representative organisations in the

improvement of health and safety at work: draw on the expertise and advice available on both sides of indusiry
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Part 2

Health and Safety Commission Accounts
and
Health and Safety Executive Accounts

2002/03







FOREWORD

1 Background information

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 provided for the creation of a Health and Safety Commission
(HSC) and Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and the continuation of the Employment Medical Advisory
Service (EMAS). The Commission came into being on | October 1974 and appointed the Health and Safery
Executive on | January 19735, The aims of the Commission and the Executive, whose existence and functions
denive from the 1974 Act, are 1o protect the health, safety and welfare of employees and to safeguard others,
principally the public. who may be exposed to risks from work activities. For further information refer to

paragraphs 1.1 w 1.83 of the Annual Bepont.

The financial statements of the Commission and Executive have been prepared pursuant to paragraphs 14 (1)
and 200 (1) of Schedule 2 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 in a form determined by the Secretary
of State with the approval of the Treasury. They are accruals based financial statements that show the full in-
year costs of the Commussion and Executive. The financial statements include the figures for the Health and

Safety Laboratory.

2 Results and appropriations

Met operating cost and resource outturm for HSC was £643 266, The net operating cost for H5E was
£201 632 556 and the net resource outtum was £203 627 4149, Income earned 1o the value of £1 994 864 is
required to be paid o the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP, Request for Resources 2) and 15 included

in Schedule 4.

3 Review of activities

Sections | and 2 of the Annual Report review the delivery of plans published in the H5C business plan

200022003,

4 Market value of land and buildings

The leasehold property at Priestly House, Basingstoke was independently valued in 2001/02 by Weatheralls,
Chartered Survevors. The leasehold property at St. Hugh's, Bootle was independently valued in 2001/02 by
Donaldsons, Chartered Surveyors. These leases have been classified as operating leases (refer accounting
policy note 1) but were deemed to have a market value of £350 000 and £339 000 respectively. The leasehold
building at Stoneleigh, which has an existing use value of £225 000 has an open market value of nil due to the
strict user clause and the bar on assignment and subletting. Other than these properties, there is no significant

difference between the book values and the market values of land and buildings included in these accounts.
5 Research and development
HSE's research and development and technical support are detailed in table 24 in the Annual Report.
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6 Future development

The Commission’s and Executive’s continuing aims and strategic themes for 200203 were set out in the Health

and Safety Commission’s three year Strategic Plan published in October 2001.

7 Health and Safety Commission members
Chairman: Bill Callaghan.

Other members: George Brumwell, Margaret Burns CBE. Abdul Chowdry. Judith Donovan CBE, Joyce

Edmond-Smith, Judith Hackin, John Longworth, Maureen Rooney OBE, and Owen Tudor,

8 Health and Safety Executive members

Director General: Timothy Walker CB.

Other members: Kate Timms CB and Justin MceCracken.

9 Corporate governance

The Health and Safety Commission and the Health and Safely Executive are committed 1o supporting the
Combined Code on Corporate Govermnance and the Turnbull Report 1o the extent that the Code can be :ipp”m’]
1o the Public Sector,

HSC, (*the Commission” ), comprises a Chairman and nine members who are all the equivalent of independent
non-executive directors, They are appointed on a fixed werm basis (see note 3 in the HS5C accounts and note g

in the HSE accounts) with no amtomatic right of reappointment, The appointments are made by the Secretary of
Stane through standard public appointment procedures, Commission members are appointed after consuliation

with orgamisations representing emplovers, employees, local anthorities and other relevant bodies.

HSE, (*the Executive’), comprises a Director General and two Deputies who are all the equivalent of executive
directors (see page xii of the Annual Report). All three members of the Executive are appointed by the Health
and Safety Commission under Civil Service rules administered by the Civil Service Commissioners and with
the approval of the Secretary of State. The remuneration of the Executive members is arrived at by reference 1o

the Civil Service annual pay review.

The general functions of the Commission and the Executive are specified in the Health and Safety at Work etc.
Act 1974, the Executive being primarily responsible for operational matters. The HSC and HSE Boards meet
regularly to discuss strategic direction and plans, formulate policy on key issues etc. in order to maintain full
and effective control over all significant policy, regulation and guidance, compliance, organisational and

financial issues.

Throughout the year and in all material respects, the Executive complied with the terms of the financial

memorandum issued by the Secretary of State. A separate statement is made on the system of internal control.
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10 Equality and diversity

The Executive is an Equal Opportunities Employer with a determination to treat all people fairly, irrespective
of gender, ethnic origin, marital status, religious belief, age, sexual orientation or disability. Main achievements

during 2002/2003 are shown in paragraph 1.60 of the Annual Report.

11 Employee involvement

There are well-established consuliation arrangements in HSE for recognised trade unions to contribute 1o all
matters affecting the staff. Staff involvement is actively encouraged as part of day-to-day line management and
efforts are being made to improve methods and channels of communication. In addition to formal consultations
with HSE Trade Unions, staff are directly consulted and briefed about major proposals for organisational or

personnel changes. Further details are shown in paragraph 1.75 of the Annual Report.

12 Prompt payments

HSE is committed to the prompt payment of bills for goods and services received and conforms to the
principles of the Better Payment Practice Code, issued by the Better Payment Practice Group. Payments are
normally made as specified in the contract. If there is no contractual provision. or other understanding, payvment
15 due to be made within 30 days of the receipt of the goods or services or presentation of a valid invoice or
similar demand, whichever is later. HSE's overall performance during 200203 was 98.9% (2001/02 98.9% ) of

invoices paid within the agreed credit period.
13 Health and safety within HSE

The Executive aims to set and maintain exemplary standards of performance which are consistent with those
recommended by us to others, s0 as 1o ensure the health and safety of its staff, as well as others who may work

at, or visit our premises. Further details are shown in paragraphs 1.77 1o 1.83 of the Annual Report.

14 Environment

HSE has continued to pursue and promote best environmental practice and to implement initiatives set out in
the model policy statement issued by the Depariment of the Environmeni. Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA).

Further details are shown in paragraph 1.70 of the Annual Repon.

15 Introduction of the Euro

On 1 Jﬂnu:ir}' 2002, 12 euro countries completed their transition o the euro by mlm{hlving curo cash. This has

had no significant effect on HSE.
While the UK stays outside EMU, the euro is a foreign currency and HSE processes a relatively small number

of foreign currency (European) transactions, HSE continues 1o manage preparations necessary for possible

changeover o the single currency, in line with the Second National Changeover Plan.
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STATEMENT OF THE COMMISSION’S,
THE EXECUTIVE’S, THE CHAIRMAN’S AND
DIRECTOR GENERAL’'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Under paragraphs 14(1) and 20(1) of Schedule 2 of the Health and Safety a1 Work ete. Act 1974 the Health and
SELIL"l}' Commission and the Health and Safety Executive are required 1o prepare a statement of accounts for
each financial year in the form and on the basis determined by the Secretary of State, with the consent of the
Treasury. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the
Commission’s and the Executive’s state of affairs at the year-end and of their net resource outturm, resources

applied 1o objectives, recognised gains and losses, and cash flows for the financial vear.
In preparing their accounts the Commission and Executive are required 1o

] observe the Accounts Directions issued by the Secretary of State, including the relevant accounting and

disclosure requiremenis, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
® make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

[ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and disclose and explain any

material departures in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis. unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the Commission and the Executive will continue in operation,

The Accounting Officer for the Department for Work and Pensions has designated the Chairman of the Health
and Satety Commission and the Director General of the Health and Safety Executive as Accounting Officers
for the Commission and Executive respectively, Their relevant responsibilities as Accounting Cfficers,
including their responsibilities for the propriety and regularity of the public finances for which they are
answerable and for the keeping of proper records are set out in the Non-Departmental Public Bodies

Accounting Officer Memorandum, issued by the Treasury and published in Government Accounting.

Timothy Walker CB

Director General, Health and Safety Executive
Accounting Officer

| September 2003

Bill Callaghan

Chairman. Health and Safety Commizsion
Accountng Officer

1 September 2003



STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

As Accounting Officers (for the Health and Safety Commission (HSC). the Chair. and for the Health and Safety
Exccutive (HSE), the Direcior General), we have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the HSC's and the HSE's policies. aims, objectives and strategic
priorities agreed with the Department’s Ministers, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets
for which we are personally responsible. in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to us in Government

Accounting.

The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims, objectives and strategic priorities, 1o evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and o manage
them efficiently, effectively and cconomically. It can therefore provide only reasonable and not absolute

assurance of effectiveness.

Strategy for securing health and safety in relation to work activities is set by HSC with inpul and support from
HSE. Our strategy in essence covers both immediate workplace risks and the control of major hazards. For the
former, our long-term sirategy is rooted in *Securing Health Together” and *Revitalising Health and Safery”
both of which were published in 2000, On major hazards our strategy reflects the regulatory regimes for those
hazards, and the aim of avoiding serious Fulures, These are supplemented by a Strategic Plan covering the
three-year period from April 2001 1o March 2004, Together these documents set out the aims and objectives for
HSC/E for this period. HSE has recognised the need 1o improve its strategic focus and 1o that end has
established a Strategy and Intelligence Division with the specific aim of improving its strategic foresight and

capacity to deliver outcome-based sirategies,

The approach being taken to business risk management described here is taking place against a process of
change in HSE (of which the establishment of a Strategy and Intelligence Division mentioned above is one
aspect) designed to make HSE a more modemn, responsive and flexible organisation better equipped to deliver
its strategic agenda. It is also in Keeping with the government-wide two year Risk Handling Improvement

Programme.

The HSE Board meets formally once a month and has overall responsibility for the system of internal control
including implementing systems of control and monitoring and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board has

agreed the strategic risks, Six generic risks have been identified and owners of these agreed:

strategic failune

organisational capacity Failure
stakeholder management Failure
delivery and quality failure
financial failure

human resource management Failure

Twenty-four more specific risks have been identificd below this generic level. A detailed evaluation by risk
owners to analyse the effectiveness of the control measures in place has been carried out; this included whether

further controls were needed. In some instances the need for further controls has been identified and the
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necessary action is now in hand. Further consideration of the twenty-four risks is taking place to test their

continuing relevance,

The systems of internal control operate through HSE's existing management structure. All major projects (eg
for new regulations) are guided by the principles and criteria set out in “Reducing Risks, Protecting People
(HSE’s nsk-based decision making framework) and are subject to approval by the relevant HSE Board member
and agreement by HSC and Ministers; major projects with cross HSE implications will be considered by the
Board collectively. There is also an annual planning process designed to plan and agree allocation of resources
in the light of the strategic aims of HSC/E.

Corporate policies cover a wide range of issues including the health and safety of HSE's own staff and
conlractors, personnel matters, planning, finance, accounting, procurement, information technology and
regularity, propriety and authorisation of expenditure. All are communicated throughout the organisation and

are sel oul in codes or other instructions available to all siaff.

Use of resources is subject to clear delegation from HSE's Accounting Officer to individual senior managers
and is specified and agreed in writing. It is monitored in year and the Board receives monthly reports of
expenditure and income against forecasts. Formal project management techniques are used for the planning and

delivery of all major projects.

HSE has an Internal Audit unit, which has direct access to the Accounting Officer and operates to the
Government Internal Audit Standards. HSL has an internal audit function supplied by a private sector auditor
which also works to Government Internal Audit standards. Their work plans are approved by their Audit
Commitiees o whom they also submit regular reports, which include an opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the syvstem of intermal control, wgether with recommendations for improvement, The overall
risk management arrangements are being developed in consultation with HSE's Internal Audit Unit and will be
subject to regular review by it. The Internal Audit work programmes will continue to focus on testing the

adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of internal control in HSE and HSL.

Our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal
auditors and the senior managers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework, and comments made by the extemal auditors in their management letter and other reports.
The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit is that HSC/E has a generally sound framework of control
which provides reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievements of its objectives and
that the organisation will be better able 1o demonstrate this when its arrangements for business risk

management are fully embedded.

HSC/E's control environment was subject to a review in 2002 by a major firm of consultants. They concluded
that it had been strengthened since their earlier review in 1997, when they had found the organisation 10 have a
strong control framewaork and positive culture. The report said that HSE recognised the benefits of the inclusion
of non-executive directors in management boards of government bodies; but in HSE's case there were legal
problems with doing so. However, two non executive members have been appointed to the audit committee; it

is intended that one of these will chair it in due course.,
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HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMISSION

THE CERTIFICATE AND REPORT OF THE
COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE
HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT

I certify that [ have audited the financial statements on pages 153 to 159 under the Health and Safety at Work
etc. Act 1974, These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and the

accounting policies set out on page 155.

Respective responsibilities of the Commission, Chairman,
and Auditor

As described on page 147, the Chairman of the Health and Safety Commission is responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work ete. Act 1974 and directions made
thereunder by the ﬁuflutzlr}' of State and for ensuring the regularity of Dinancial ransactions. The Chairman and
the Director General of the Health and Safety Executive are jointly responsible for the preparation of the other

contents of the Annual Report, My responsibilities, as independent auditor, are established by statute and guided

by the Auditing Practices Board and the auditing profession’s ethical guidance.

I report my opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Health and Safety at Work ete. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder by the Secretary
of State, and whether in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govemn them. 1 also
report if, in my opinion, the Foreword 15 not consistent with the financial statements, if the Commission has not
kept proper accounting reconds, or if | have not receved all the information and explanations [ réquire for my

audir.

| read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. | consider the implications for my certificate if | become aware of any apparent

misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements.

I review whether the joint statement on pages 148 1o 150 reflects the Commission’s compliance with Treasury’s
guidance ‘Corporate governance: statement on the system of internal control’. 1 report if it does not meet the
requirements specified by Treasury, or if the stalement is misleading or inconsistent with other information |

am aware of from my audit of the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An andit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant o the amounts, disclosures and

regularity of financial transactions included in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
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SCHEDULE |

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMISSION: SUMMARY OF
RESOURCE OUTTURN 2002/03

Request for Resources is received on a combined basis for HSC and HSE. Any vanance is allocated 1o HSE
and is explained in their account (refer pages 162 1o 188).

Actual outturn - resources
Request for Resources 2: (Health and Safety Commission and Executive): Actual amount net resource outturn

£204 270 685.57. Actual amount of savings in resources over Estimate £10 308 314,43, (HSE only figures are
detailed in their account). Net operating cost compared with Estimate is made up as follows :

*AME (nan cash items) — outside resource expenditure

The notes on pages 155 to 159 form part of these accounts,
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HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMISSION
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2002/03
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Statement of accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2002/03 Resource Accounting Manual
(RAM) issued by HM Treasury, The particular accounting policies adopted by HSC are described below. They

have been applied consistently in dealing with the items considered material in relation 1o the accounts,

(a) Accounts Directions

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury, the
Health and Safety Commission and Health and Safety Executive have prepared a joint Foreword, Statement of
Responsibilities and Statement on Internal Control and separate Summary of Resource Ouwttum (Schedule 1)
and Operating Cost Statements (Schedule 2). The HSC has not produced a Balance Sheet as any assets and
liabilities of the HSC are included in the HSE Balance Sheet (Schedule 3) and are not material in value (see
MNote 2 Request for Resources). HSC has no bank account and all direct and indirect expenditure is paid for by
HSE. so the production of a Cash Flow Statement (Schedule 4) is deemed inappropriate. As HSE is responsible

for delivering the aims and objectives (Schedule 51, this schedule is not produced for HSC.

(b) Accounting convention
Consolidated accounts have nol been prepared. with the agreement of HM Treasury and Mational Audit Office,
on the basis that there is a statutory requirement to produce separate accounts for HSC and HSE and it would

be administratively burdensome and provide no additional information for the reader of the accounts.

(c) Pension costs

The current Chairman is not a member of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PC5PS) bt
arrangements exist whereby the Health and Safety Executive make pension payments analogous 1o those that
would have been made if he had been a member of the FCSPS and are payvable out of the cument year’s funds
that are made available. A notional pension cost is added to the chairman’s emoluments. The appointment of

Commission members is non-pensionable,

The employees of the Health and Safety Commission, other than the Chairman and Commission members, are
civil servamis to whom the conditions of the Superannuation Acts 1965 and 1972 and subsequent amendments

apply. For details of the schemes please refer to HSE accounts, accounting policy note 1(k).
2 Request for Resources

Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safety at Work ete. Act 1974, the Commission is financed by Request

for Resources from the Department for Work and Pensions (Request for Resources 2).

The total Request for Resources received by the Health and Safety Commission from the Department for

Transpon, Local Government and the Regions and Department for Work and Pensions for the financial year
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————

Moles:

(W Appaintment commenced | 4.02
{2) Digd May 2003
i3} Appointment ended 31.3.02

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employver and treated by the Inland
Revenue as a taxable emolument. Other taxable benefits for Commission members include mileage and an
accommodation allowance, as appropriate. Any ensuing tax liability is met by HSC.

The Chainman and Commission members are appointed for a fixed term of up to three years. The Chairman is
part-time, working four days a week. If the Chairman or a member leaves the Commission other than on the
expiry of their term of office. and it appears to the Secretary of State that there are special circumstances that
justify the payment of compensation, a payment can be made as determined by the Secretary of State with
Treasury approval.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE

THE CERTIFICATE AND REPORT OF THE
COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE
HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT

I certify that 1 have audited the financial statlements on pages 162 to 188 under the Health and Safety at Work
eic. Act 1974, These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified

by the revaluation of certain fixed assets and the accounting policies set out on pages 168 to 172,

Respective responsibilities of the Executive, Director
General and Auditor

As desenbed on page 147 the Director General of the Health and EELIN}' Executive 15 responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and directions made
thereunder by the Secretary of State and for ensuring the regularity of financial transactions. The Director
Cieneral and the Chairman of the Health and Safety Commission are jointly responsible for the preparation of
the other contents of the Annual Report. My responsibilities. as independent auditor, are established by statute

and guided by the Auditing Practices Board and the auditing profession’s ethical guidance.

I report my opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder by the Secretary
of State. and whether in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 1 also
report if, in my opinion. the Foreword is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Executive has not
kept proper accounting records, or if [ have not received all the information and explanations | require for my

aucit,

I read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited inancial statements. 1 consider the implications for my certificate if | become aware of any apparent

misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

I review whether the joint statement on pages 148 1o 150 reflects the Executive’s compliance with Treasury's
guidance *Corporate governance: statement on the system of internal control’. 1 report if it does not meet the
requirements specified by Treasury, or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information |

am aware of from my audit of the financial statements.

- - | § -
Basis of audit opinion
| conducted my audit in accordance with United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts, disclosures and

regularity of financial transactions included in the financial statemenis. It also includes an assessment of the
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SCHEDULE |

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE:
SUMMARY OF NET RESOURCE OUTTURN 2002/03

Naote:

Analysis of income pavable o the Depariment for Work and Pensions

As a Non-Deparimenial Public Body, the Healeh and Safery Executive retaing income generated in order 1o fund
ity acrivities. By agreement with DWE, excess income over Estimaie ix paid over o the Depariment. Amounis
pavable in 2002003 were £2 287 238 42 of which £2 285 878.83 (see alse Schedule 3) was enistanding at

A Mareh 2003, Ameeris paid in 2002003 were £2 002,95 of wihich £643 .36 refared to 2000002 amd £1 359,59
related ro 2002003,

Actual ontiurn - resources

Request for Resources 2. Actual amount net resource outturn £203 627 41928, Actual amount ﬂfmvin.gs in
resources over Estimate £10 308 580.72. Net operating cost compared with Estimate is made up as follows:

* AME (non cash items) — owrside resource expenditure
The notes on Pages 168 to 188 form part of these accounts
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SCHEDULE 2

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE:
OPERATING COST STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

2IM2103 200102
Notes £ £7000
Administration costs
Staff costs 2 145 645 136 323
Other administration costs 3 80 679 BT 531
Exceptional item: loss on sale of assels - 3139
Gross administration costs 216 324 227 043
Operating income 5 (46 477) (44 908)
EU income (523) 651)
MNet administration costs 179 324 181 484
Programme costs
Expenditure 4 29 161 28017
Less income 4 &5 (6 832) (6 803)
Net programme costs 22 309 21212
Net operating cost 6&7 201 633 202 696
Met resource outturn 6&7 203 628 202 699

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations with the exception of EECS (see note 5).

Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 March 2003

200203 2001/02

£ 000 £00(0

et Gainfiloss)h on revaluation of tangible fixed assets (Refer note 16) 724 213
Recognised gains and losses for the financial vear 124 213

The nores on pages 168 fo (88 form part of these accounis.
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SCHEDULE 4

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE:
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2003

The amount of grant actually issued to support the net cash requirement = £193 070 000.00
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SCHEDULE 5

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE:
RESOURCES BY AIMS AND OBJECTIVES FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2003

2002/03 2001/02
Gross  Income MNet Gross  Income Net
£ £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ (N} £ 000
Aims/objectives
First aim:
To modernise, simplify and support the 39929 (3I781) 36148 37126 (3608) 33518
regulatory framework, including EU and

other international work

Second aim:

To secure compliance with the law in line 145 141 (34 533) 110608 150378 (32375) 118003
with the principles of proportionality,

consistency. transparency and targeting

on a risk related basis

Third aim:

To improve the knowledge and 36 260 (100353) 25907 42061 (10017 32044
understanding of health and safety through

the provision of appropriate (and timely)

information and advice

Fourth aim:
To promote risk assessment and technical 25392 (1994 23398 14855 (1069 13161
knowledge as the basis for setting standards

and guiding enforcement activities

Fifth aim:
To operate statutory schemes, including 8763 (3 191) 5572 10640 (4670 5970
regulatory services. through,

for example, EMAS

Nel operating costs 255485 (53 852) 2001633 255060 (52364) 202 696

The Notes on pages 168 o 188 form part of these accounis.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE:

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Statement of accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2002/03 Resource Accounting Manual
(RAM) issued by HM Treasury. The particular accounting policies adopled by HSE are described below. They
have been applied consistently in dealing with the items considered material in relation (o the accounts. The

financial stalemenis include the figures for the Health and Safety Laboratory,

The accounting policies contained in the RAM follow generally accepted accounting practice for companics

(UK GAAP) 1o the extent that is meaningful and appropriate o the public sector,

(a) Accounts Direction

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasury the
Health and Safery Commission and Health and Safety Executive have prepared a joint Foreword, Statement of
Responsibilities and Statement on Internal Control. These accounts have been prepared under the historical cosi
convention modified o account for the revaluation of fixed assets (including the depreciated replacement cost
of the specialist laboratory site at Buxton). and stocks where material, at their value to the business by

reference (o their current cosis.

(b) Analysis of activities

All the activities of the Executive are designed to use the measures in the Health and Safety at Work ete. Act
1974 to further the reduction of eccupational accidents and disease. The Executive. under the Accounts
Direction issued by the Secretary of State, has not provided for an analysis of costs and related revenues by

each separate activity.

(c) Government grants
Pursuant 1o Section 43 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Commission has been financed by
Request tor Resources both from the Department for Transpon, Local Government and the Regions and from

Department for Work and Pensions duee 1o a change in Department during the year.

The Commission pays to the Executive such sums as the Commission considers appropriate for the purpose of
enabling the Executive to perform its functions. The Request for Resources is credited 1o the General Fund in

the year in which it is received.

(d) Assets

All assets are held by the Health and Safety Executive on behalf of the Health and Safety Commission.

Items of equipment costing less than £2 000 are charged to expenditure in the year of purchase, except for
computer equipment (refer Note 23) costing over £500 and items of furniture which are grouped for
capilalisation by year of acquisition.
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ltems of equipment purchased under research contracts and held by outside bodies are charged 1o expenditure

in the vear of purchase,
Fixed assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition and installation.

Non-property assets are revalued to open market value. Price index numbers for current cost accounting
{(MM17) published by the Office for National Statistics are used to estimate value where market value is not
obtainable.

Land and buildings are valued on an existing use basis except for the specialist laboratory site at Buxton which

has been included at depreciated replacement cost.

In accordance with the Resource Accounting Manual and FRS 15 professional revaluations of land and
buildings will be undenaken m least every five years, The respective values of all frechold properties and only
those leasehold properties that qualify as finance leases (refer accounting policy note 1) are included in the
Balance Sheet. The frechold and leasehold properties at Sheffield and Buxton were independently valued
during 200203 by Chesterton PLC, Chartered Surveyors. The property at Carlisle was independently valued
during 2000001 by Donaldsons, Chartered Surveyors. In each case the valuations were in accordance with the
Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Roval Institute of Chanered Surveyors. In the periods between formal

valuations properties have been revalued in accordance with appropriate indices.
(e) Depreciation
Frechold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is provided on all other tangible fixed assets from the date of acquisition or from the date of

revaluation in the case of buildings and leasehold land.

Depreciation is calculated 1o write-off the replacement cost or valuation of an assel evenly over its expected
useful life except for vehicles acquired for the car leasing scheme where 60 per cent of the original cost is

depreciated over the three vear life of the contract.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated at the following rates o write them down o estimated residual value on a

straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Buildings: Freehold over 50 years or remaining life assessed

by the valuers

Leasehold over period of lease or 1o next rent review

Specialist plam over remaining life
Furniture up to 15 vears
Office machinery. publicity & major

scientific eguipment up to 10 vears
IT equipment up to 5 years
Printing/typesetting and

telecommunications equipment up 1o 7 years
Vehicles up 1o 7 years
Motor vehicles leased 1o stafl up to 3 years
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5
(f] Revaluation reserves

Surpluses arising on the revaluation of fixed assets are credited to a revaluation reserve. Deficits are charged 10
the reserve in respect of amounts previously credited: the balance of any deficit is charged to the operating cost

statement.

(g) Stocks and work in progress

Stocks and work in progress are valued as follows:

[ ] finished goods and priced goods for resale are valued at cost or, where materially different. current
replacement cost, and at net realisable value only when they either cannot or will not be used. The cost

of free publications is written off in the year in which it 15 incurred.

* work in progress is valued at the lower of cost. including appropriate overheads, and net realisable

value,

(h) Foreign currency
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rates

prevailing at the vear-end.
All other gains and losses are dealt with through the Operating Cost Statement.

(i) Research

Expenditure on résearch is written off in the year in which it is incurred.

(j]  Capital charge
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by HSE, is included in operating costs. The charge is calculated
at the Government’s standard rate of 6 per cent in real terms on all assets less liabilities, except for donated

assets and cash balances with Office of HM Payvmaster General, where the charge is nil.

(k) Pension costs

*ast and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Civil Service Pension Schemes which are
described at note 2, The defined benefits elements of the schemes are unfunded and are non-contributory
excepl in respect of dependents benefits. HSE recognises the expected costs of these elements on a systematic
and rational basis over the period during which it benefits from employees® services by payment 1o the
Principal Civil Service Pension Schemes (PCSPS) of amounts caleulated on an aceruing basis, Liability for
payment of futere benefits is a charge on the PCSPS. In respect of the defined contribution element of the

schemes, HSE recognises the contributions payable for the year.

() Leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by HSE, the asset is recorded
as a tangible asset and a debt is recorded to the lessor of the minimum lease payments discounted by the
interest rate implicit in the lease, The interest element of the finance lease payment is charged to the Operating
Cost Statement over the period of the lease at a constant rate in relation 1o the balance owtstanding. Other leases
are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged 1o the Operating Cost Statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

170



(m) Administration and programme expenditure

The Operating Cost Statement is analysed between administration and programme costs. Administration costs
reflect the costs of running the organisation as defined under the adminisiration cost-control regime, together
with associated operating income. Income is analysed in the notes between that which, under the regime, is
allowed to be offsel against gross adminisirative costs in determining the outturn against the administration cost
limit, and that operating income which is not. Programme costs reflect non-administration costs, including

paymenis of grants and other disbursemenis by the Execunive,

(n) Private Finance Initiative (PFl) transactions

PFI transactions irefer Note 23) have been accounted for in accordance with Treasury Technical Note No. |
(Revised), entitled “How to Account for PEI transactions” as required by the Resource Accounting Manual.
Where the balance of risk and rewards of ownership of the PFI asset are borne by the PFI operator, the PFI
payments are recorded as an operating cost. Where HSE has contributed assets. a prepayment for their Fair
value is recognised and amortised over the life of the PFI contract. Where at the end of the PFI contract a
property reverts to HSE. the difference between the expected Fair value of the residual assets on reversion and
any agreed payment on reversion is built up over the life of the contract by capitalising part of the unitary

charge each year,

Residual interests in off balance sheet PFI assets are included i debtors and are not depreciated until the asset

is brought into use or reverts o the department respectively.

Where the balance of risks and rewards of ownership of the PFI asset is bome by HSE. the asset is recognised
as a fixed asset and the liability to pay for it is accounted for as a finance lease. Contract pavments are

apportioned berween an imputed finance lease charge and a service charge.

(o) Provisions

HSE provides for legal or constructive obligations which are of uncertain timing or amount at the Balance
Sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure reguired 1o settle the obligation. Where the eflect
of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the

Treasury discount rate of 6% in real terms.,

{(p) Contingent liabilities
In addition to contingent liabilities disclosed in accordance with FRS 12, HSE discloses for parliamentary
reporting and accountability purposes certain contingent liabilities where the likelihood of a transfer of

economic benefit is remote, These comprise:

® ltems over £100 000 (or lower. where required by specific statute) that do not arise in the normal
course of business and which are reported to Parliament by departmental Minute prior (o HSE entering

into the arrangement.
[ All items (whether or not they arise in the normal course of business) over £100 000 (or lower, where

required by specific statute or where material in the context of resource accounts) which are required
by the Resource Accounting Manual to be noted in the resource accounts.
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2. Staff costs of the Health and Safety Executive

Mote 1:

Costs in respect of staff on secondment or loan, and agencyltemporary staff were included in Other
Administration Costs {MNore 3} in 2001102 accounts.

Mote 2:

The PCSPS is an unfunded multi-emplover defined benefit scheme bur HSE is unable ro identifv its share of the
underlving assets and labilivies. A full aciwarial valvation was carvied ot as ar 31 March 1999, Derails can be
Jouend in the resource accounts of the Cabiner Office: Civil Superannuation {www.civilservice-pensions.gov.uk).

For 2002/03 employers contributions of £16 939 964 were payable to the PCSPS (2001/02 £16 237 564) at one
of the four rates in the range 12 to 18.5 per cent of pensionable pay, based on salary bands. Rates will remain
the same next year, subject to revalorisation of the salary bands. Employer contributions are to be reviewed
every four vears following a full scheme valuation by the Government Actuary. The contribution rates reflect
benefits as they are accrued, not when the costs are actually incurred, and reflect past experience of the scheme.

Employees joining after 1 October 2002 could opt to join a parinership pension account, a stakeholder pension
with an employer contribution. For 2002003 employers contributions of £5 630,65 were paid to two appointed
stakeholder pension providers.

MNote:

2004102 numbers have been restated to include agency staff and staff on inweard secondment.
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8 Analysis of capital expenditure, financial investment

and associated appropriations in aid
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18 Commitments under operating leases

Commitments under operating leases o pay rentals during the year following the year of these accounts are
given in the table below, analysed according to the period in which the lease expires:

19 Finance leases

HSE’s obligations under finance leases are as follows:

20 Reconciliation of net operating cost to changes in
general fund




21 Related party transactions

The Health and Safety Executive 15 an Executive Non-Depantmental Public Body with Crown status and is

sponsored by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).

DWP is regarded as a related party. During the year, HSE had several transactions with DWP wotalling
£602 630 that mainly related to the provision of pension services and premises costs. HSC and HSE did not

have material iransactions with other entities for which the DWRP is regarded as the parent Department.

For 2000/02 our sponsor depaniment was the Department for Transport Local Government and the Regions

(DTLR).

In addition, HSE had a number of material transactions with other Government Departiments and other central
sovernment bodies, The significant transactions have been with the Cemtral Office of Information (£514 314,
2001/02 - £761 000), Civil Service College (£314 346, 2001,/02 - £230 000), Department of Health (£223 177,
2001/02 - £200 0000, Treasury Solicitor (£235 616, 2001/02 - £267 000) and Department of Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs expenditure of £538 977 and mainly relate to premises. research, training. computer, legal
services and adminisirative expenditure. None of the Executive members, the Director General or senior
managers, or any person connected with these. had any interest in any material transactions with HSE or

received benefits from HSE suppliers during the year.
22 Notes to Schedule 5
Our aims are those laid out in the Health & Safety a1 Work etc. Act 1974,

The Health and Safety Executive’s operating cost has been allocated to aimsfobjectives wherever directly

attributable or apportioned using normal management accounting practices.

23 Commitments under PFI contracts

HSE has entered into the following PFI contract.

CMT balance sheet

IT Services

In June 2001, HSE signed a 10 year contract with a partiner (Logica CMG with Computacenter as the key sub-
contractor) for the provision of information and communications technology and Information Strategy (IS)

service across all HSE sites and 1o all HSE users. The objectives of the retendering for I'T services project were:

L 1o secure continued delivery of 1S/IT in support of HSE's operational services, including allowing HSE
1o develop its use of IT to support its relationship with industry, the public and other stakeholders;

L] o improve the efficiency and cost effectiveness of HSE's existing IS/IT services;
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L e enfiance the quality of HSE's business services, through the integrated, improved and expanded use
of IS/IT: and

L to ensure HSE has the IT capability to deliver agreed work programmes in accordance with legislative
changes and wider Government policies.

HSE sought to streamline the management of its I'T service arrangements by placing all of its IT services with a
single strategic partner who will have responsibility for delivering an end 1o end service.

The Agreement is based on a model agreement for PFIL contracts, Typically in PFI deals the contractor provides
services and risk is transferred to the party best able to manage it, The partner has taken over ownership of
HSE’s IT hardware and some software assets and is responsible for providing all future assets needed to deliver
the IT service,

The charges may vary according o volume, development of application and business systems. service
improvemenis projects and the level of the partner’s performance and service availability. The core charges are
linked to annual movements in line with the Retail Price Index. Project charges are fixed for 3 vears and
thereafier linked 1o the Average Earnings Index and Compuier Economics Index for IT Services. The services
provided by the partner are also subject to biannual value for money benchmarking exercises.

Transparency of our partner’s costs and charges supporting a profit sharing agreement are the fundamental
financial controls in the contract. The partner is contractually obliged o provide:

(] an up-to-date linancial model which sets out the basis of the calculation of the charges, revenue costs
{including capital costs, financing costs and ongoing revenue expenditure) and contingencies of the
services and

® an annually produced centificate of costs indicating their actual costs, expenses and profits in providing
the services over the preceding year of the agreement with access to the partner's records 1o verify the
fgures produced.

If Logica CMG were to meet the performance standards in the contract and the transaction levels and business
developments fall within the agreed parameters, the payments under the contract at constant price levels would
be:

A discount rate of 6% has been used to derive the net present cost of the non discretionary payment streams in

years Iwo 1o ten.
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24 Contingent liabilities

[ October 20010, a claim from Thames Trains Lid following the Ladbroke Grove railway disaster was Aled
against HSE and Her Majesty’s Railway Inspectorate for an amount in excess of £5 million. The basis of the
claim is that HSE was negligent in connection with the railway infrastruciure at the location of the crash, This
claim will be rigorously defended and whilst the outcome of these matiers cannot readily be determined or

foreseen . it is considered that it is likely that the claim will be defended successfully,

HSE is currently defending three equal pay cases from emplovees on two separate issues. Each case is at a
different stage in what could be a long legal process. If we were 1o lose, the hnancial consequences would
depend on the nature of the judgement in relation to the employees who brought the cases, and the degree o
which the judgements would apply to other members of staff, including and the extent to which any awards

made are backdated.,

25 Financial instruments

FRS 13, Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments. requires disclosure of the role which financial
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its
activities. Because of the largely non-trading nature of our activities and the way in which government bodies
are Minanced, HSE is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Moreover, financial
instruments play a much more limited role in their ability to create or change risk than would be typical of the
listed companies to which FRS 13 mainly applies. HSE has no powers 1o borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not held to change the

risks facing HSE in undertaking its activities.

HSE's exposure 1o foreign currency risk is not significant. Disclosure of debtors and creditors due and payable

after one vear 15 made in the respective Notes to the Accounts. Fair and book values are deemed 1o be the same.
Liguidity risk

HSE’s net revenue resource requirements are financed by resources voted annually by Parliament. HSE is not

therefore exposed to significant liguidity risk.
Interest rate risk and profile

All of HSE's financial assets and labilities carry nil rates of interest and hence are not exposed to significant

interest rate risk.
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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS

ARBI
ACAS
ACOP
ACS
ADR
ALAC
AlB
ALARP
ARK
ASLEF
ATEX
ATP
AWE
BE
BEU
BI

BIP
BP
BREEAM
BTFP
BWED
CA
CAM
CAD
CAS
CAW
CAWR
CBI
CCTV
CD
CDM
CEM
CEMELEC
CHIP
CHS5C
CHSW
ClA
CIF
CITE
CLAW
CLG

Association of British Insurers

Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service

Approved Code OF Practice

Accredited Certification Scheme for Individual Gas Fitting Operatives
The European Agreement concerning the International Carriage of Dangerous Goods by Road
Agriculture Industry Advisory Committee

Asbestos Insulation Board

As Low As Reasonably Practicable

All Round Knowledge

Associated Society of Locomoive Engineers and Firemen
Explosive Atmospheres Direclive

Adaptation o Technical Progress

Alomic Weapons Establishment

British Energy

Business Efficiency Unil

Business Improvement

Business Improvement Plan

Britsh Petroleum

Building Research Establishment’s Environmental Appraisal Method
British Transport Police

Better Working Environment Division

Competent Authority

Civil Aviation Authority

Chemical Agents Directive

Cliem Advisory Service

Control of Asbestos at Work Regulations

Control of Asbestos at Work Regulations

Confederation of British Industry

Closed Circuit Television

Consultative Document

Construction { Design and Management) Regulatons

Comite European de Nommalisation (Evropean standards commitiee)
European Committee for Electrotechnical Standardization

Chemical (Hazard Information and Packaging) Regulations
Corporate Health and Safety Commitiee

Construction {Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations

Chemical Industries Association

Chemical Industries Forum

Construction Industry Training Bourd

Conirol of Lead at Work Regulations

Constructors Liaison Group
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